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NOTICE

Ordinary Business :

Special Business :

S. K. Kejriwal
 Company Secretary

NOTES

A Member entitled to attend and vote at the Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy to attend and vote instead of himself and a proxy need not 

of the total share capital of the company carrying voting rights, then such proxy shall not act as a proxy for any other member.
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ANNEXURE TO THE NOTICE

Particulars Relating to Directors proposed to be appointed/re-appointed

Name of Directors Mr. Sunil Khaitan Ms. Sunanda Lahiri

NIL

NIL NIL

274662 NIL 

S. K. Kejriwal
 Company Secretary
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DIRECTOR’S REPORT 

To the Members

Your Directors have pleasure in presen ng the 19th Annual Report on the working of the Company together 

with the audited accounts for the year ended 31st March, 2015.

FINANCIAL RESULTS 

The Þnancial results of the Company as prescribed in the said Accounts are summarized below :

 2014-15

 (Rs. In lacs)

2013-14

 (Rs. In lacs)

Revenue from Opera ons (Net) 9443.14 9062.96

Other Income 122.41 171.53

Total Revenue 9565.55 9234.49

Less : Total Expenses 7968.42 8088.30

ProÞt before Finance Cost and Deprecia on 1597.13 1146.19

Less : Finance Cost 862.04 686.55

Deprecia on and Amor za on Expense 598.82 688.30

ProÞt before excep onal/extra-ordinary items 136.27 (228.66)

Add : Excep onal Items 2.18 465.37

Less : Extraordinary items 68.65 —

ProÞt before Tax 69.80 236.71

Add : Deferred Tax — —

ProÞt for the year from con nuing opera on 69.80 236.71

ProÞt/(Loss) from discon nuing opera on (108.41) (88.88)

ProÞt for the year (38.61) 147.83

OPERATIONAL REVIEW

During the year under review, the total revenue of the company was Rs.9443.14 lacs as compared to Rs. 

9062.96 lacs in the previous year. The opera ng surplus (proÞt before Þnance cost and deprecia on) of 

the Company was Rs. 1597.13 lacs as compared to Rs.1149.19 lacs in the previous year. The Company has 

accounted for excep onal income of Rs. 2.18 lacs and extraordinary items of Rs. 68.65 lacs during the current 

year. The Company has incurred loss of Rs. 108.41 lacs for its discon nuing opera on as against Rs. 88.88 lacs 

in the previous year. The net loss during the year was Rs. 38.61 lacs as compared to proÞt of Rs. 147.83 lacs  

in the previous year. 

DIVIDEND 

Due to loss, your Directors are unable to recommend payment of any dividend on Equity Shares for the year 

under review.  

EXPORT

The Company’s export turnover was Rs. 2093.41 lacs during the year under review, as compared to Rs.  

2444.90 lacs in the previous year.  

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

The Audited Accounts for the year under review are in conformity with the requirements of the Act and the 

Accoun ng Standards. The Þnancial statements reßect fairly the form and substance of transac ons carried 

out during the year under review and reasonably present your Company’s Þnancial condi on and results of 

opera ons.
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Your Directors conÞrm that:

 i) In the prepara on of the annual accounts, the applicable accoun ng standards had been followed and 

no material departures have been made from the same, save and except as men oned in the Auditor’s 

Report.

 ii) They have adopted such accoun ng policies and applied them consistently and made judgments and 

es mates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of a airs of the 

Company at the end of the Þnancial year and of the proÞt or loss of the Company for that period;

 iii) Proper and su cient care has been taken for the maintenance of adequate accoun ng records in 

accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act,  2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company, 

for preven ng and detec ng fraud and other irregulari es;

 iv) The annual accounts have been prepared on a going concern basis.

 v) That there is adequate proper internal Þnancial controls with reference to the Þnancial statement have 

been laid down for the company and such internal Þnancial controls are adequate and were opera ng 

e ec vely.

 vi) That proper systems have been devised to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 

and such systems were adequate and opera ng e ec vely.

AUDITORS’ REPORT

The comments made by the Auditors in their report and other relevant points in Annexure to their report are 

self-explanatory. The relevant notes to the accounts also clarify the points referred to by the Auditors. The 

Auditors have drawn a en on of the members in qualiÞed opinion of their report as under :

 1. Point no. (a) regarding non-provision of long term and short term loans and advances, which has 

not been provided because your Company is hopeful of some recovery out of it and if necessary, in 

consulta on with the Auditors, necessary provision will be made in coming years.

 2. Point no. (b) regarding the claims receivable from Octroi Department in respect of the closed Nasik 

unit, your Company is hopeful of either receiving the claims or will be adjus ng the claims with the  

dues of Octroi dept., if any, payable at the me of sale of the closed Nasik unit.

 3. Point no. (c) is related party transac on and has not been wri en o .

 4. Regarding Point no. (d) , your Company is nego a ng with Industrial Development Bank of India for 

se lement of their dues which is under process.

 5. Regarding Point no. (e), your Company has not made the provision of con ngent liabili es since 

quantum of liability can not be ascertained pending se lement/disposal of appeals and the Company 

is hopeful of ge ng favourable orders from the appellate authori es in respect of such appeals.

TRANSFER TO INVESTORS’ EDUCATION AND PROTECTION FUND 

In terms of sec ons 205A and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956 read with General Circular No. 22/2002 

dated 23rd September, 2002 issued by the Department of Company A airs, the Company could not deposit 

unclaimed and unpaid redemp on amount of debentures and accrued interest thereon to Investors’ 

Educa on and Protec on Fund (presently sec on 125 of the Companies Act, 2013) and had Þled necessary 

applica on with the BIFR seeking relief u/s 22(3) of SICA and also their approval to make the payment to 

public debenture holders as and when debentures cer Þcates are surrendered to the Company. The BIFR has 

approved the same in terms of the Rehabilita on Scheme sanc oned by them vide order dated 10th June, 

2010. The Company is making payment to the debenture holders under public category as and when the 

debenture cer Þcates are surrendered with the company. 

REHABILITATION SCHEME

As you are aware, the Rehabilita on Scheme of the Company, under the provisions of the Sick Industrial 
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Companies (Special Provisions) Act, 1985, was sanc oned by Hon’ble Board of Industrial & Financial 

Reconstruc on vide its order dated June 10, 2010. The Scheme envisaged comprehensive Þnancial 

restructuring of the company which is s ll under implementa on. The Company has also Þled a modiÞed 

Debt Rehabilita on Scheme (MDRS) in consulta on with the secured lenders of the Company which is yet to 

be approved by BIFR. 

DEPOSITS

The Company has not accepted any public deposit since its incep on.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Your Directors rea rm their con nued commitment to good corporate governance prac ces. During the year 

under review, your Company was in compliance with the provisions of Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement with 

the Stock Exchanges rela ng to corporate governance and as required by Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement, 

Management Discussion & Analysis and Corporate Governance Report are annexed as Annexure-I to the 

Directors’ Report and forms part of this report. A cer Þcate from the Auditors of the Company regarding 

compliance of the condi ons of Corporate Governance as s pulated in the Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement 

is also a ached to this report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR)

The Companies Act, 2013 s pulates expenditure of 2% of the average proÞt of past 3 years of CSR ac vi es. 

The Act requires the Board to cons tute a Corporate Social Responsibility Commi ee of the Board which has 

already been cons tuted. The company has formulated CSR Policy for promo on of educa on, healthcare 

and other ac vi es which is uploaded on website of the company. The average net proÞt of last 3 Þnancial 

years is below the s pulated limit i.e. Rs. 5 crores and hence the Company has not made any expenditure on 

CSR ac vi es during the year.  

ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM / WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

The Company has established a vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy. The policy allows in ma on by 

a ected persons in good faith of concern or misconduct through a wri en communica on. The Audit 

Commi ee oversees the vigil mechanism for disposal of the complaint. Direct access to the Chairman of the 

Audit Commi ee is also allowed in excep onal cases. The vigil mechanism/whistle blower policy is available 

on the Company’s website (www.shalimarwires.com)

RISK MANAGEMENT 

The Company has laid down the procedures to inform to the Board about the risk assessment and minimiza on 

procedures, which shall be responsible for framing, implemen ng and monitoring the risk management plan 

of the company. 

DISCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS WITH REGARD TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY ETC. 

Necessary informa on pursuant to sub-sec on (3) of sec on 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 

8(3) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is presented in Annexure -II to this Report. 

ENVIRONMENT AND SAFETY

 The Company is conscious of clean environment and safe opera ons. It ensures safety of all concerned, 

compliance with environmental regula ons and preserva on of natural resources. As required by the Sexual 

Harassment of Women at Workplace (Preven on, Prohibi on & Redressal) Act 2013, the Company has an 

internal policy on preven on of sexual harassment at workplace with a mechanism of lodging complaints. 

During the year under review, no complaints were reported to the Board.

INSURANCE 

Adequate insurance cover has been taken for proper es of the Company including buildings, plant and 

machineries and stocks against Þre, earthquake and other risks as considered necessary. 
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DIRECTORS

In terms of the provisions of the companies Act, 2013 the Board appointed all the exis ng independent 

directors i.e. Mr Dipak Rudra, IAS ( Retd.), Mr Probir Roy and Mr Dipak Dasgupta, for a term of 5 years 

upto the conclusion of Annual General Mee ng to be held in the year 2019. The shareholders at the Annual 

General Mee ng held on 29th September, 2014 had approved their appointment. The independent directors 

have submi ed the declara on of independence as required under Sec on 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 

and the Board is of the opinion that they are independent within the meaning of the said requirement of the 

Act.

As per provisions of Sec on 152 of the Companies Act, 2013, Mr. Sunil Khaitan  (DIN 00385961) re re by 

rota on and being eligible o er himself for reappointment. The Board recommends his reappointment. 

The Board appointed  Ms Sunanda Lahiri   (DIN 00451473) as Addi onal Director on 7th February, 2015 who 

shall hold o ce up to the date of the ensuing Annual General Mee ng. The company has received a no ce as 

per the provisions of sec on 160(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 from a member proposing her appointment 

as a director.  Based on her vast experience in banking sector, the Board recommended the appointment 

of Ms. Sunanda Lahiri as an Independent Director who shall hold o ce for Þve consecu ve years un l the 

conclusion of Annual General Mee ng to be held in the year 2020. 

The resolu on has been included in the Agenda of the ensuing Annual General Mee ng. Approval of the 

members is sought for the said appointment. 

STATUTORY AUDITORS

The auditors M/s. S.S. Kothari & Co., Chartered Accountants, Statutory Auditors of the company were 

reappointed as Auditors in the Annual General Mee ng held on 29th September,  2014 for the period un l 

the conclusion of the 21st  Annual General Mee ng of the Company at a remunera on to be Þxed by the 

Board from me to me. 

Further, the said Auditors are eligible under Sec on 141(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and their appointment 

is to be ra Þed by the members in the ensuing Annual General Mee ng which we recommend.

COST AUDITORS

The Audit Commi ee in its mee ng held on 27.5.2015 has recommended the reappointment of M/s. Mitra 

Bose & Associates, the Cost Auditor to conduct the cost audit of the company for the Þnancial year 2015-16 

in terms of sec on 148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly the Board appointed the said Þrm of Cost 

Accountants to carry out the cost audit for the year 2015-16 on the remunera on as recommended by the 

Board to be Þxed by members in the ensuing Annual General Mee ng of the Company

INTERNAL AUDIT 

The Company has engaged M/s. Chaturvedi & Co., Chartered Accountants as its Internal Auditor and their 

scope of work and the plan for audit has been approved by the Audit Commi ee. The report submi ed 

by them is regularly reviewed and their Þndings are discussed with the senior management and suitable 

correc ve ac on taken on an ongoing basis to improve e ciency in opera ons. 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT 

Pursuant to the provisions of Sec on 204 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Appointment and 

Remunera on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the company has appointed Messrs MR & Associates, 

Prac cing Company Secretaries to undertake the Secretarial Audit of the company. The report of the 

Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as Annexure - III. 

OTHER DISCLOSURES

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN

The details for the Þnancial year ended 31st March, 2015 forming part of the extract of the annual return is 

enclosed as Annexure - IV.
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CHANGE IN SHARE CAPITAL 

During the year ended 31st March, 2015, there is no change in the issued and subscribed capital of your 

company. The outstanding equity share capital of the company as on 31st March, 2015 is 752.10 lacs 

comprising of 37605123 equity shares of Rs. 2/- each. 

NUMBER OF BOARD MEETINGS 

The Board of Directors met four mes during the year ended 31st March, 2015. The details of the Board 

mee ngs and the a endance of Directors are provided in the Corporate Governance Report. 

COMPOSITION OF COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS 

The Board has cons tuted the following Commi ees of Directors: (a) Audit Commi ee, (b) Nomina on & 

Remunera on Commi ee. (c) Stakeholder Rela onship Commi ee The detailed composi on of above 

Commi ees is given in Corporate Governance Report. 

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All the related party transac ons are entered on arm’s length basis and are in compliance with the Companies 

Act, 2013 and the Lis ng Agreement. There are no materially signiÞcant related party transac ons made by 

the Company with Promoters, Directors or Key Managerial Personnel etc, which may have poten al conßict 

with the interest of the Company at large. All related party transac ons are presented to the Audit Commi ee 

and the Board for its approval. The related party transac ons policy as approved by the Board is uploaded as 

on Company’s website “www.shalimarwires.com”. The details of the transac ons with related party is given 

in the Annual Report. 

EVALUATION OF BOARD’S PERFORMANCE

In compliance with the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement, the performance 

evalua on of the Board was carried out during the year under review. More details on the same is given in 

the Corporate Governance Report. 

BUSINESS RESPONSIBILITY REPORT (BR) 

In terms of new clause 55 of the Lis ng Agreement, listed en es shall submit as part of their Annual Reports, 

Business Responsibility Reports, describing the ini a ves taken by them from an environmental, social and 

Governance perspec ve. Accordingly, BR Report on environment, human resources and principle wise 

performance form part of the management discussion and analysis report

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

The prescribed par culars of employees required under Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and 

Remunera on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is a ached as Annexure - V to this report. 

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Company con nued to have cordial rela ons with the employees at its plants located at U arpara and 

Paper Machine Wire unit at Nasik, Registered O ce and Branch O ces and the Board records its apprecia on 

for the useful contribu on made by them. 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Your Directors place on record their deep apprecia on for the support and coopera on extended by the 

lenders i.e. Financial Ins tu ons and Banks, customers, suppliers, employees, investors and Government 

Authori es during the year. 

Registered O ce: For and on behalf of the Board 

25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue

Kolkata – 700 013 Sunil Khaitan 

The 10th August, 2015  Chairman & Managing Director 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

Paper Machine Clothings (PMC) 

PMC Industries are solely dependent on the Paper making ac vi es. Paper making industries are growing on 

a verge of 7% p.s. for the last 7 years. Our per-capita paper consump on is only 7.0 Kgs as against world’s 

average of 56.0 Kgs., indica ng great poten ality for growth at home. Besides, the real growth in Paper making 

ac vity is taking place in Asian region while the other part of the world has already come to a satura ng 

stage. Therefore, being sta oned in the developing region and with su cient knowledge about paper making 

condi on of Asian sub-con nent, we see a great future in export poten ality for PMC products. We are also 

in the process of developing new PMC products to fetch more business from export market.

EDM Wires 

Use of EDM machines in Tool Room Industry is gaining popularity all over the world. The situa on has become 

challenging to the EDM wire makers with the inven on of developed EDM machines and it has increased 

demand of specialty EDM wires happily, which are the major product of U arpara Plant. Similar situa on 

prevails all the over the world and with our reputa on in export market with our Patented products especially 

to the developed countries, we see a bright future for this product. A new product DYNA “XT” is specially 

being developed to fetch more business from the export market as well as home market.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS 

Paper Machine Clothings (PMC) 

A er a bad spell, the paper industry both at home and abroad has started doing well and as a result the PMC 

industries are also looking forward for brighter days. At this stage in the home market when our Company is 

all set for a be er business, a great threat is foreseen from Overseas PMC suppliers of neighboring developing 

country who have started dumping their products in Indian Paper Mills at a price lower than Indian suppliers, 

which may dras cally reduce the NSR of our products as well as the o -take. Further, PMC suppliers from 

developed countries have started supplying their latest patented design to large paper mills in India. This 

becomes biggest threat to the Company. Unless we upgrade our Plant & Machinery and con nually develop 

our product it will be extremely di cult to sustain our market share and further enhance it that depends 

lot on availability of so er fund for your Company. Your Company is also expected to create new business 

horizon in Metal Weaving segment crea ng new domes c & export market.

EDM WIRES 

Threat from imported material in Indian market is seriously felt although the specialty products of Shalimar 

are ruling the home market.  In the export front, the market in the developed countries is very large and 

if quality of the product is maintained consistently the product has a very bright future.  We have already 

obtained Industrial Patent for one of our specialty products while some varie es are wai ng for approval.  

And with increase of price of NF metal, compe on has become s er. But, we are conÞdent with constant 

improvement in process, Shalimar would be able to take up the challenge.

OUTLOOK 

The outlook of Company appears bright.  The Company an cipates modest growth in its opera ons in coming 

years and have taken steps to improve further in following areas :-

 • Maintain high Quality Standards consistently.

 • Create wide based product range to cater to export market.

 • Modernize a er-sales service.

 • Improve e ciency at all states from procurement to disposal.

 • Upgrading the Old machinery.

 • Develop new design of fabric.

ANNEXURE - I
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RISKS AND CONCERNS 

Vola le technological environment and tough compe on from domes c as well as foreign markets are area 

of concern for which Company’s focus is to make cost of produc on more compe ve and reduce interest 

cost by Þnancial restructuring with a view to withstand during downturn. Main area of concern are as under :

 • Growth of Indian Paper Industry is yet to be sa sfactory.

 • Improved technology is expensive.

 • Very high interest cost.

 • Non availability of fund for expansion & Working Capital, delaying the Implementa on of project on 

me.

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM 

The Company has adopted internal control system commensurate with its size. The Company has appointed 

external Þrm of Chartered Accountants as Internal Auditors and Company ensures its strict implementa on 

so that assets and business interest of Company are adequately safeguarded. However, SAP implementa on 

is also in progress.

HUMAN RESOURCES 

The Company’s human resources strategy revolves around development of the individual. The Company 

undertook various Human Resources Ini a ve, namely –

 • A Performance Management System.

 • Training Programmes in the area of behavioural, management and technical skill up-grada on.

 • Development of leadership capability

 • Maintaining high level of employment rela onship

The total Number of Employees employed in the Company as on 31st March, 2015 was 573.

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY  

The Company is making full use of Informa on Technology, all the branches and the regional o ces of 

the Company are connected with the units by means of internet and ERP implemented is in most of the 

departments. The Company’s website namely www.shalimarwires.com provide all the details about the 

Company, its management and its products.  SAP has also been implemented in its U arpara Factory.

HEALTH, SAFETY, SECURITY AND ENVIRONMENT

Health, safety, security and environment (HSSE) is a key priority for your Company. Simply stated, our goals 

are: no accidents, no harm to people and no damage to environment. The health, safety and security of 

everyone who works for your Company, is cri cal to the success of business.

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT 

Statement in this Report, par cularly those which relate to Management Discussion and Analysis, describing 

the Company’s objec ves, protec ons, es mates and expecta ons may cons tute forward looking statement 

within the meaning of applicable laws and regula ons. Actual results might di er materially from those either.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

 1. Brief Statement on Company’s Philosophy on Code of Governance

  • The Company’s philosophy of Corporate Governance is to ensure transparency in all dealings 

and maintain highest standards of professionalism, integrity, accountability, social responsibility, 

fairness and business ethics. We consider ourselves as Trustees of our shareholders and 

relentlessly a empt to maximize long term shareholder value. 

  • The Company conÞrm the prac ce of good Corporate Governance codes by the Company in true 

spirit and are pleased to present below the Report on Corporate Governance. 

 2. Board of Directors

  As on March 31,2015, the Company has 6 (six) Directors. Out of the six Directors, one is Promoter 

and Execu ve Director (Chairman and Managing Director), one is Nominee Director and four are 

Non-Execu ve and Independent Directors. Ms. Sunanda Lahiri is Non-Execu ve Independent Woman 

Director. The composi on of the Board is in conformity with clause 49 of the lis ng Agreement entered 

into with the stock Exchanges. 

  During the Þnancial year ended 31st March, 2015, 4 (four) Board Mee ngs were held on 19.05.2014, 

05.08.2014, 12.11.2014 and 07.02.2015. 

  The composi on of Directors and their a endance at the Board Mee ngs during the year and at the 

last Annual General Mee ng as also number of other directorships and Commi ee Memberships are 

given below:

Name of Director Category No. of  Board 

Mee ngs 

A ended 

during the 

year

Whether 

last AGM 

a ended

No. of other 

Directorship 

*1

No. of other 

Commi ee 

membership/ 

Chairmanship 

*2

Mr.Sunil Khaitan, 

(DIN-00385961)

Chairman & Mg. Director

Promoter and

Execu ve

4 Yes NIL NIL

Mr. Manash Chakraborty

(DIN-05293875)

Nominee of 

ARCIL

4 No NIL NIL

Mr. Probir Roy 

(DIN-00033045)

Non-execu ve

Independent

4 No 4 1

Mr. Dipak Rudra, IAS(Retd) 

(DIN-00240145)

Non-execu ve

Independent

4 Yes 6 2

Mr.Dipak Dasgupta 

(DIN-01099414)

Non-execu ve

Independent

4 Yes 1 NIL

Ms. Sunanda Lahiri *3

(DIN-00451473)

Non-execu ve

Independent

1 NA 5 NIL

Mrs. Devjani Mandal *4

(DIN-06674295)

Nominee Director NA NA NIL NIL

 *1  Excludes Directorship held in Private Limited Companies, Foreign Companies.

 *2  Only covers Membership/Chairmanship of Audit Commi ee and Stakeholders Rela onship Commi ee 

of other Public Limited Companies.

 *3  Appointed as an addi onal director w.e.f. 7th February, 2015.

 *4   Nomina on of Mrs.Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. with e ect from 7th May, 2014.
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None of the Directors of the Company’s Board is a member of more than 10 Commi ees or Chairman of more 

than 5 Commi ees across all companies in which they are director. 

Directors’ ProÞle

A brief resume of Directors, nature of their exper se in speciÞc func onal areas and names of companies in 

which they hold Directorships, Memberships/ Chairmanships of

Board Commi ees, and shareholding in the Company are provided in this Report.

Familiarisa on programme for independent directors

As per Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement the Company has entered into with the Stock Exchanges, a 

familiariza on programme has been formulated by the Company to familarise the Independent Directors 

about their role, rights, responsibility in the Company, nature of industry in which the Company operates, 

business model of the Company etc. through various programme. The details of such familiariza on 

programme has also been uploaded on the Company’s website under the web link: www.shalimarwires.com. 

Other provisions

The company has proper systems to enable the Board to periodically review compliance reports prepared by 

the Company in respect of laws applicable to the Company, as well as steps taken by the Company to rec fy 

any instances of non-compliance. 

Code of Conduct for Directors & Senior Management

The Board had framed code of conduct for all the Board members and senior management personnel of 

the Company focusing transparency, accountability & ethical expression in all acts and deeds. The Code of 

Conduct is posted on the website of the Company.

A cer Þcate of a rma on in this regard is a ached and forms a part of the Annual Report of the Company.

 3. COMMITTEES OF THE BOARD

  The Board has currently the following Commi ees:

  • Audit Commi ee

  • Nomina on and Remunera on Commi ee

  • Stakeholders Rela onship Commi ee

  A. Audit Commi ee

   The roles, terms of reference & composi on of the Commi ee are in conformity with the 

provisions of Sec on 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement with 

the Stock Exchanges. The Commi ee acts as a link between the Statutory & Internal Auditors and 

the Board of Directors.   

  Brief descrip on of Terms of Reference

  • the recommenda on for appointment, remunera on and terms of appointment of auditors of 

the company ; 

  • review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and e ec veness of audit 

process;

  • examina on of the Þnancial statement and the auditors’ report thereon; 

  • approval or any subsequent modiÞca on of transac ons of the company with related par es; 

  • scru ny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

  • valua on of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;

  • evalua on of internal Þnancial controls and risk management systems;

  • monitoring the end use of funds raised through public o ers and related ma ers. 

  • Carrying out any other func on as is men oned in the terms of reference of the Audit Commi ee.
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  Composi on of Audit Commi ee

  The present composi on of the Audit Commi ee comprises of three members, out of which two 

are independent directors and one is nominee director. During the Þnancial year ended 31st March, 

2015, 4 (four) mee ngs of the Audit Commi ee were held on 19.05.2014, 05.08.2014, 12.11.2014 and 

07.02.2015.

  The composi on of Audit Commi ee and mee ngs a ended by the Members are as follows:

Sl.

No

Name Designa on Category No. of mee ngs 

a ended

1 Mr. Dipak Rudra Chairman Independent Director 4

2 Mr. Manash Chakraborty Member Nominee Director 4

3 Mr. Dipak Dasgupta Member Independent Director 4

4 Mrs. Devjani Mandal* Member Nominee Director N.A.

*Nomina on of Mrs. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. with e ect from 7th May, 2014.

The Statutory Auditors and Internal Auditors are invited to a end the mee ng as and when necessary. The 

Cost Auditor as appointed by the Company under sec on 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 a end the Audit 

Commi ee Mee ng,  as and when necessary.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Commi ee. 

The Chairman of the Audit Commi ee Mr. Dipak Rudra a ended the last Annual General Mee ng held on 

29th September, 2014.

 B) Nomina on and Remunera on Commi ee  

  In accordance with the provisions Sec on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and as speciÞed under 

clause 49 of the lis ng agreement. The terms of reference of nomina on and remunera on commi ee 

includes the following:

  •  Iden fy persons who are qualiÞed to become directors;

  • Iden fy persons who may be appointed as key managerial personnel and in senior management 

posi ons;

  • Recommended to the Board for re-appointment of directors based on performance evalua on of 

the re ring director;

  • Annual evalua on of every director’s performance;

  • Formula ng a remunera on policy of the Company;

  • To propose remunera on packages for the Directors and Key Managerial Personnel including 

senior management;

  • Recommending re-cons tu on of the Board or senior management as may be required from 

me to me under the prevailing laws and for opera onal e ec veness of the Company..

  Composi on of the Commi ee

  The Nomina on and Remunera on Commi ee comprises of three directors, consis ng of two 

independent directors and one nominee director. The Composi on of Nomina on and Remunera on 

Commi ee is pursuant to the provisions of Sec on 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of 

the Lis ng Agreement.

  During the Þnancial year ended 31st March, 2015, (two) mee ngs of the Nomina on and Remunera on 

Commi ee was held on 19.05.2014 and 05.08.2014 and the necessary quorum was present for all the 

mee ngs. The Chairman of the Nomina on and Remunera on Commi ee was also present at the 
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last Annual General Mee ng of the Company. The detail of mee ng a ended by the Members are as 

follows:

Sl.

No

Name Designa on Category No. of mee ngs 

a ended

1 Mr. Dipak Rudra Chairman Independent Director 2

2 Mr. Manash Chakraborty Member Nominee Director 2

3 Mr. Dipak Dasgupta Member Independent Director 1

4 Mrs. Devjani Mandal * Member Nominee Director N.A.

*Nomina on of Mrs. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. with e ect from 7th May, 2014.

  Remunera on Policy

  • Remunera on to Execu ve and Non-Execu ve Directors 

   Mr. Sunil Khaitan is only whole me Director who is the Chairman & Managing Director of the 

company and is paid remunera on in terms of the agreement executed between him and the 

company. The current tenure of Chairman & Managing Director is for a period of three years 

with e ect from 1st April, 2014 which can be further extended by re-appoin ng him, subject to 

the approval by Members in the General Mee ng. The remunera on paid to Mr. Sunil Khaitan 

is within the limit as prescribed under Part-II of Sec on-IIA of Schedule-V of the Companies Act, 

2013. The Non-Execu ve Directors are paid si ng fees as approved by the Board/Commi ee 

mee ngs besides reimbursement of actual traveling and out of pocket expenses. Presently, 

the Company does not have any scheme for grant of stock op ons either to the directors or 

employees of the company. 

  • Remunera on of key managerial personnel (KMP) and senior managerial personnel (SMP) 

   Remunera on to KMP and SMP is Þxed at a level aimed at a rac ng and retaining execu ves with 

professional and personal competence, showing good performance towards achieving company 

goals. The remunera on  includes salary, allowances, medical insurance premium, perquisites 

and other beneÞts as per the policy of the company. 

 c) Remunera on  to Directors 

  The details of remunera on paid/payable to the Directors during the year ended on 31.03.2015 are 

given below:

Name Salary (Rs.) Perquisites & 

Allowances  

(Rs.)

Si ng fee  (Rs.) Total  (Rs.) Service 

Contract if any

Mr.Sunil Khaitan

(Chairman & Mg. Director)

22,20,000 23,38,452 # - 45,58,452 Yes

Mr. Manash Chakraborty 

(Nominee Director)

- - 82,000      82,000 Nominee

Mr. Probir Roy - - 32,000      32,000 No

Mr. Dipak Rudra - - 82,000      82,000 No

Mr. Dipak Dasgupta - - 77,000      77,000 No

Ms. Sunanda Lahiri * - -   8,000        8,000 No

Mrs. Devjani Mandal ** - - NIL    NIL Nominee

Total 22,20,000 23,38,452 2,81,000 48,39,452

 # Perquisites includes contribu on to Provident Fund amoun ng to Rs.2,61,400/- and Bonus for the 

Þnancial year 2013-14 of Rs.4,44,000/-.

 * Appointed as an addi onal director w.e.f. 7th February, 2015.

 ** Nomina on of Ms. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. w.e.f. 7th May, 2014.
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  Performance Evalua on:

  Pursuant to the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement, the Board 

has carried out the annual performance evalua on of its own performance, the Directors individually 

as well as the evalua on of the working of its Board Commi ees. The performance evalua on of the 

Chairman and the Managing               

Director and the Non- Independent Directors was carried out by the Independent Director.  

 C) Stakeholders Rela onship Commi ee

  a) Composi on of the Commi ee

   The Stakeholders Rela onship Commi ee is primarily responsible to review all ma ers 

connected with the Company’s transfer of securi es and redressal of shareholders’/investors’/

security holders’ complaints. The Commi ee also monitors the implementa on and compliance 

with the Company’s Code of Conduct for prohibi on of Insider Trading.

   The Stakeholders Rela onship Commi ee comprises of three directors, consis ng of two 

independent directors and one nominee director. During the Þnancial year ended 31st March, 

2015, four mee ngs of the said Commi ee were held on 19.05.2014, 05.08.2014, 12.11.2014 

and 07.02.2015 and the necessary quorum was present for all the mee ngs.

The details of mee ngs a ended by the directors are as follows:

S l .

No

Name Designa on Category No. of mee ngs 

a ended

1 Mr. Dipak Rudra Chairman Independent Director 4

2 Mr. Manash Chakraborty Member Nominee Director 4

3 Mr. Dipak Dasgupta Member Independent Director 4

4 Mrs. Devjani Mandal * Member Nominee Director N.A.

*Nomina on of Mrs. Devjani Mandal was withdrawn by IDBI Bank Ltd. with e ect from 7th May, 2014.     

  b) Terms of Reference

   The terms of reference of Stakeholders Rela onship Commi ee are as follows :

   i) Ensure redressal of Shareholders and Investors complaints rela ng to transfer of shares, 

Non-receipt of balance sheet etc.

   ii) Redressal of Investors complaints in respect of non-receipt of interest/redemp on 

proceeds against the non-conver ble debenture.

   iii) To oversee the performance of Maheshwari Datama cs Pvt. Ltd., the Registrar and Share 

Transfer Agent.

   iv) To delegate the powers of approving transfer of shares/debentures to the Company’s 

Registrar under the supervision and control of the Company Secretary, subject to placing 

of the summary statement of transfer/ transmission etc. of shares/debentures of the 

company at the commi ee mee ng.

   v) To implement and monitor the various requirement as set out in the Code of Conduct for 

provision of insider trading pursuant to the provisions of the SEBI (prohibi on of Insider 

Trading Regula ons, 1992.)

   As per SEBI guidelines, the powers of processing of the share transfers, both physical and demat 

mode have been delegated to M/s. Maheshwari Datama cs Pvt. Ltd. in order to expedite the 

process of share transfers, issue of duplicate cer Þcates and cer Þcates a er split/consolida on/

renewal and rematerialisa on. Mr. S.K. Kejriwal, Company Secretary has been appointed as the 

compliance o cer for complying with the requirement of SEBI and the lis ng agreement.

  The Company conÞrms that there were no share transfers lying pending as on 31.03.2015 and all 

requests for dematerialisa on and re-materialisa on of shares as on that date were conÞrmed/
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rejected into the NSDL/CDSL system. Details of shareholders’ complaints received and resolved during 

the period April, 2014 to March, 2015 :-

a) Number of Shareholders’ complaints received during the year Nil

b) Number of Shareholders’ complaints resolved during the year Nil

c) Number of complaints not resolved to the sa sfac on of shareholders Nil

d) Number of complaints pending Nil

OTHER COMMITTEES

 A) Corporate Social Responsibility Commi ee

  Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Commi ee of the Board was cons tuted on 19th May, 2014 in 

order to formulate and recommend the Board a CSR Policy indica ng the ac vi es to be undertaken 

by the Company and to discharge such other responsibili es as required under sec on 135 of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014.

  The Company formulated CSR Policy, which is uploaded on the website of the Company (Web link: 

h p://www.shalimarwires.com/code_of_conduct.php)

  Composi on 

Sl.

No

Name Designa on Category

1 Mr. Sunil Khaitan Chairman Chairman and Managing Director

2 Mr. Manash Chakraborty Member Nominee Director

3 Mr. Dipak Rudra Member Independent Director

4 Mr. Probir Roy Member Independent Director

5 Mr. Dipak Dasgupta Member Independent Director

  Terms of Reference of the Commi ee, inter alia, includes the following:

  1. To formulate and recommend to the Board, a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy 

indica ng ac vi es to be undertaken by the Company in compliance with provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and rules made thereunder

  2. To recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on the CSR ac vi es

  3. To monitor the implementa on of the CSR Policy of the Company from me to me

 B) Risk Management Commi ee

  The Company has laid down procedure to inform board members about the risk assessment and 

minimiza on procedures. The Commi ee’s prime responsibility is to implement and monitor the risk 

management plan and policy of the Company.

  Composi on of the Commi ee

S l .

No

Name Designa on Category

1 Mr. Sunil Khaitan Chairman Chairman and Managing Director

2 Mr. Dipak Rudra Member Independent Director

3 Mr. Dipak Dasgupta Member Independent Director 

4 Mr. R.P. Dhanuka Member Sr. President

5 Mr. S.J. Sengupta Member Sr. VP & CFO

6 Mr. S.K. Kejriwal Member Company Secretary 
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Role and Responsibili es of the Commi ee includes the following:

 • Framing of Risk Management Plan and Policy 

 • Overseeing implementa on of Risk Management Plan and Policy

 • Monitoring of Risk Management Plan and Policy

 • Valida ng the process of risk management

 • Valida ng the procedure for Risk Minimisa on

 • Periodically reviewing and evalua ng the Risk Management Policy and prac ces with respect to risk 

assessment and risk management processes

 • Con nually obtaining reasonable assurance from management that all known and emerging risks have 

been iden Þed and mi gated or managed

 • Performing such other func ons as may be necessary or appropriate for the performance of its 

oversight func on

 4. General Body Mee ngs

  The last three Annual General Mee ng were held as under : 

Financial 

Year

Date and Time Venue No. of Special 

2013- 2014 29th September, 

2014 10.00 A.M.

Science City Mini

Auditorium. Kolkata

• Altera on of Ar cles of Associa on u/s.14 

of the Companies Act, 2013.

• Reappointment of Managing Director u/s 

196, 197, 203 of the Companies Act, 2013.

• Increasing in borrowing limit u/s. 180(1)(c) 

of the Companies Act, 2013.

2012-2013 23rd September, 

2013 10.00 A.M. 

Science City Mini

Auditorium. Kolkata

None

2011-2012 28th September, 

2012 10.00 A.M. 

Science City Mini

Auditorium. Kolkata

Appointment of Mr. Vedant Khaitan to hold 

an o ce or place of proÞt u/s. 314 of the 

Companies Act, 1956

In the last AGM held on 29.09.2014 no resolu on was passed through Postal Ballot. 

There is no proposal for passing any resolu on through Postal Ballot in the ensuing AGM.

 5. Disclosures     

  i) Related party transac ons:

   Related Party transac ons have been disclosed under Note No. 34 to the accounts for year under 

review and it is not conßict with the interest of the Company.

   As required under clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement, the Company has formulated a policy on 

dealing with Related Party Transac ons. The Policy is available on the Company’s website www.

shalimarwires.com.

  ii) Accoun ng Treatment:

   In the prepara on of the Þnancial statement, the Company has followed the Accoun ng Standards 

referred to in Sec on 133 of the Companies Act, 2013. The signiÞcant accoun ng policies which 

are consistently applied have been set out in the Notes to the Financial Statements.

  iii) Details of non- compliance by the Company, penal es, strictures imposed on the  Company by 

the stock Exchanges, SEBI or any Statutory Authority on any ma er related to Capital Markets 

during the last three years:

   The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of the Lis ng 

Agreement with the Stock Exchanges as well as regula ons and guidelines of SEBI, wherever 

applicable. No penal es or stricture have been imposed by SEBI, Stock Exchanges or any Statutory 
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Authori es on ma ers related to Capital Markets during the last three years except two cases of 

Bombay Stock Exchange for late submission of  Shareholding pa ern by one day and quarterly 

compliance on Corporate Governance by two days. 

  iv) Vigil Mechanism/ Whistle Blower Policy:

   Pursuant to Sec on 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement 

the Company has framed a Vigil Mechanism /Whistle Blower Policy and the same has also been 

placed in the website of the Company. None of the employees has been denied access to the 

Audit Commi ee.

  v) Details of compliance of mandatory and non- mandatory requirements:

   The Company has complied with all the applicable mandatory requirements. Adop on of non- 

mandatory requirements of Clause 49 of Lis ng Agreement is being reviewed by the Board from 

me to me.

 6. Preven on of Insider Trading: 

  The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for Preven on of Insider Trading with a view to regulate 

trading in securi es by the Directors and designated employees of the Company. The Code requires 

pre- clearance for dealing in the Company’s shares and prohibits the purchase or sale of Company 

shares by the Directors and the Designated employees while in possession of unpublished price 

sensi ve informa on in rela on to the Company and during the when the Trading Window is closed. 

The Company Secretary is responsible for implementa on of the Code. The Policy is available on the 

Company’s website www.shalimarwires.com.

 7. Policy against Sexual Harrassment:

  The Company is commi ed to foster a gender friendly work place, it seeks to enhance equal 

opportuni es for men and women, prevent/stop/redress sexual harrassment at the work place and 

ins tute good employment prac ces.

 8. CEO & CFO Cer Þca on

  Mr. Sunil Khaitan, Chairman and Managing Director and Mr. S.J. Sengupta, Sr. V.P. and CFO have 

provided annual cer Þca on on the Þnancial statements to the Board as required under clause 49 of 

the lis ng agreement.

 9. Means of Communica on

  (i) The quarterly unaudited Þnancial results and the audited Þnancial results as approved and taken 

on record by the Board of Directors of the company are published during the year under review 

in leading na onal newspapers viz Financial Express (all edi on) and a local language newspaper 

viz. and also sent immediately to all the Stock Exchanges with which the shares of the Company 

are listed. The annual reports are sent to every shareholder of the Company.

       (ii) The Company’s Þnancial results are displayed on the Company’s website www.shalimarwires.

com.

  (iii) The Company has a separate e-mail Id secretarial@shalimarwires.com for investors to in mate 

their grievances, if any. 

 10. General Shareholders Informa on:

a) Annual General Mee ng                              

Date                           30th September, 2015

Time            10.00 A.M.

Venue          Science City Mini Auditorium, J.B.S. Haldane Avenue, Kolkata-700 

046

b) Financial Calender (tenta ve) 

for the year 2015 – 2016                                   

 1st Quarterly results On  10th  August, 2015
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 2ndQuarterly results On or before 14th Nov, 2015         

 3rd Quarterly results  On or before 14th Feb, 2016

 4th Quarterly results  On or before 15th May, 2016

c) Book Closure Date 25th September, 2015 to 30th September, 2015 (both days 

inclusive)

d) Lis ng of Equity shares on Stock 

Exchanges

The Company’s shares are listed on the Stock Exchanges at:-

• Calcu a Stock Exchange (Stock Code 100294) 

• Bombay Stock exchange (Stock Code 532455) 

The lis ng fees for the period 2015-2016 have been paid to both 

the Stock Exchanges.

Demat ISIN Number in NSDL and CDSL:

INE 655 D 01025

f) Market Price Data           The market price data (Monthly High/Low) of the company’s 

Equity Shares traded on The Stock Exchange, Mumbai during the 

period April 2014 to March 2015 is given below. There was no 

trading in Calcu a stock exchange. 

BOMBAY STOCK EXCHANGE LTD. 

Month High Low

April, 14 4.25 3.15

May,  14 4.20 2.80

June,  14 7.31 3.90

July,  14 8.40 6.18

Aug,  14 6.10 5.02

Sept,  14 6.39 5.01

Oct,   14 5.23 3.87

Nov,  14 5.23 4.22

Dec,   14 5.24 4.55

Jan,    15 5.46 4.05

Feb,   15 4.70 4.04

Mar,  15 4.80 3.43

g) Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agent

Maheshwari Datama cs Pvt.Ltd.

6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor

Kolkata – 700 001

h) Share Transfer System The Company’s shares are in compulsory demat mode. The share 

received for transfer in physical mode are generally registered 

within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt, if the 

documents are clear in all respect. Shares under objec on are 

returned within two weeks. Stakeholders Rela onship Commi ee 

considers & approves the transfer proposals.

i) Distribu on of shareholding & 

shareholding Pa ern.

As a ached and forms a part of annual report
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j) Dematerialisa on of shares The shares of the Company are compulsorily traded in 

dematerialized form under depository system of both the Na onal 

Securi es Depository Ltd.(NSDL) and the Central Depository 

Services (India) Ltd. (CDSL).

Company’s Electronic Connec vity Registrar is Maheshwari 

Datama cs Pvt.Ltd., 6, Mangoe Lane, Kolkata – 700 001.

As on 31st March, 2015, 98.58 % of the paid up share capital of 

the Company represen ng 37071333 Nos. of equity shares held in 

demat form with NSDL and CDSL.

k) Corporate Iden ty Number 

(CIN)

L74140WB1996PLC081521

l) Factory loca on The Company’s factories are located at the following places :-

1. 77,Netaji Subhas Road, U arpara, Dist.Hooghly,W.B.

2. Paper Machine Wire Unit

73, Industrial Estate, Satpur, Nashik – 422 007

m) Address for correspondence With the Company:

Share Department

25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 2nd Floor,

Kolkata – 700 013

Tel.Nos : (033) 2234-9308/09/10   

Fax No. : (033) 2211-6880

E-mail  : secretarial@shalimarwires.com

Website : h p://www.shalimarwires.com

With the Registrar:

Maheshwari Datama cs Pvt.Ltd.

6, Mangoe Lane, 2nd Floor

Kolkata – 700 001

Tel.Nos: (033) 2243-5029/5809, (033) 2248-2248

Fax  : (033) 2248 5787

E-mail : mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in

DECLARATION INDER CLAUSE 49 

As provided under Clause 49 of the Lis ng Agreement with the Stock Exchanges, the Board members and the 

senior management personnel have a rmed compliance with the Code of Conduct of the Company for the 

year ended 31st March, 2015. 

Place  :  Kolkata Sunil Khaitan

Dated :   10th August, 2015 Chairman & Managing Director
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AUDITORS CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

TO THE MEMBERS OF SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED 

We have examined the compliance of condi ons of corporate governance by Shalimar Wires Industries 

Limited (“the Company”) for the year ended 31st March, 2015, as s pulated in Clause 49 of the Lis ng 

Agreements entered into with the Stock Exchanges.

The compliance of condi ons of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management.  Our 

examina on was limited to a review of the procedures and implementa on thereof, adopted by the company 

for ensuring the compliance of the condi ons of corporate governance.  It is neither an audit nor an expression 

of opinion on the Þnancial statements of the company.

In our opinion and to the best of our informa on and according to the explana ons given to us, and the 

representa on made by the Directors and the management, we cer fy that the company has complied with 

the condi ons of Corporate Governance as s pulated in the above-men oned Lis ng Agreements.

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the 

e ciency or e ec veness with which the management has conducted the a airs of the company.

For S.S.KOTHARI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

(Firm Regn. No. 302034E)

21, Old Court House Street CA P.K. Bha acharya

Kolkata – 700 001 Partner

10th August, 2015 Membership No. 015899 
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Informa on under Sec on 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 8 of the Companies (Accounts) 

Rules, 2014 :

 A. Conserva on of Energy

(i) The steps taken or impact on 

Conserva on of Energy

1. We have installed APFC panel to increase Power 

factor. Our power facto increase 0.90 to 0.95. Due to 

increasing power factor we are ge ng rebate from 

CESC.That is reßected in CESC  power Bill.

2. We have proposed to introduce Energy monitoring 

with real me so ware system .

(ii) The steps taken by the Company for 

u lizing alternate sources of energy

Nil

(iii) The capital investment on energy 

conserva on equipments

Rs 4.62 lacs.

 B. Technology Absorp on

(i) The e orts made towards technology 

absorp on

a) Synthe c 

i) WISS & Long Float are two new designs developed 

and sent to market for be er life of fabric as well 

as for be er quality of paper.

ii) 2 New high speed looms have been installed to 

increase the produc vity.

iii) Woven Dryer Screen developed for high speed 

machines.

iv) 2 Nos. of new spiral machines installed in our Link 

Canvas Dept. to increase produc vity.  

(ii) The beneÞts derived like product 

improvement, cost reduc on, product 

development or import subs tu on

i) With the development of above two designs, we have 

been able to increase product life of highly abrasive 

machines and increase the scope of supply to di erent 

kind of paper machines, which ul mately leads to 

increase in business. 

ii) A er introducing two modern high-speed looms in 

synthe c weaving, the produc vity & quality of fabric 

produced will improve simultaneously. 

iii) We have started manufacturing di erent grades of 

woven dryer fabrics thereby we are catering into this 

segment of market, which has got growing demand 

considering the fact of technological up-grada on 

of paper making process. It has been added in our 

produce range to cater the segment thereby increasing 

the business and turn-over of the company.  

iv) A er introducing two numbers of new spiral machines, 

we are able to increase our produc vity.

ANNEXURE - II
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(iii) In case of imported technology 

(imported during the last three years 

reckoned from the beginning of the 

Þnancial year)-

Nil

a) the details of technology 

imported

b) the year of import

c) whether the technology been 

fully absorbed

d) if not fully absorbed, areas where 

absorp on has not taken place, 

and the reasons thereof and

(iv) the expenditure incurred on research 

and development

Rs 6.73 lacs

 C. Foreign exchange earnings and outgo :

  (i) Foreign exchange earned in terms if actual inßow : Rs 2093.41 lacs

  (ii) Foreign exchange outgo in terms of actual ou low :Rs 2859.48 lacs.
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MR & Associates

Company Secretaries

46, B. B. Ganguly Street, Kolkata-700012

Moblie No: 9831074332

Email : goenkamohan@hotmail.com

Form No. MR - 3
SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

[Pursuant to sec on 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies 

(Appointment and Remunera on of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

To, 

The Members, 

SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue,

P S Bowbazar,

Kolkata- 700013 

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the 

adherence to good corporate prac ces by SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED (hereina er called the 

company). Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evalua ng 

the corporate conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our veriÞca on of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns Þled and other 

records maintained by the company and also the informa on provided by the Company, its o cers, agents 

and authorized representa ves during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, 

the company has, during the audit period covering the Þnancial year ended on 31st March, 2015 complied 

with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and 

compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the repor ng made hereina er: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns Þled and other records maintained by 

the Company for the Þnancial year ended on 31st March, 2015 according to the provisions of: 

 (i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder; 

 (ii) The Securi es Contracts (Regula on) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made thereunder;

 (iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regula ons and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 

 (iv) The following Regula ons and Guidelines prescribed under the Securi es and Exchange Board of India 

Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):- 

  i.  The Securi es and Exchange Board of India (Substan al Acquisi on of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regula ons, 2011; 

  ii.  The Securi es and Exchange Board of India (Prohibi on of Insider Trading) Regula ons, 1992; 

  iii. The Securi es and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) 

Regula ons, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;

   I further report that, there were no ac ons/ events in pursuance of ;

   a. Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regula ons made thereunder 

to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External 

Commercial Borrowings;  

   b.  The Securi es and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regula ons, 2009; 

   c.  The Securi es and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Op on Scheme and Employee 

Stock Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; 

ANNEXURE - III
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   d.  The Securi es and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Lis ng of Debt Securi es) Regula ons, 

2008;     

   e.  The Securi es and Exchange Board of India (Delis ng of Equity Shares) Regula ons, 2009; 

and 

   f. The Securi es and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securi es) Regula ons, 1998;

 (v) Other laws applicable to the Company as per the representa ons made by the Company                                                                                          

  We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

  (i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Ins tute of Company Secretaries of India.

   (Not no Þed during the period under Audit)

  (ii)       The Lis ng Agreements entered into by the Company with Bombay Stock Exchange Limited and 

Calcu a Stock Exchange.

  During the period under review, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, 

Regula ons, Guidelines, Standards, etc. men oned above subject to the following observa ons:

   (a) As per Clause 35(b) of Lis ng Agreement, the Company has in mated the Stock Exchanges 

regarding shareholding pa ern for December quarter beyond one day from the days 

speciÞed.

   (b) As per Clause 49 of Lis ng Agreement, the Company has in mated the Stock Exchanges 

regarding Compliance Report on Corporate Governance for September and December 

quarter beyond two days from the days speciÞed.

We further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is duly cons tuted with proper balance of Execu ve Directors, Non-

Execu ve Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composi on of the Board of Directors 

that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act. 

Adequate no ce is given to all directors to schedule the Board Mee ngs, agenda and detailed notes on agenda 

were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further informa on 

and clariÞca ons on the agenda items before the mee ng and for meaningful par cipa on at the mee ng. 

Majority decision is carried through while the dissen ng members’ views are captured and recorded as part 

of the minutes. 

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with the 

size and opera ons of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regula ons 

and guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period the Company has:

 (a) passed special resolu on in the mee ng of its shareholders held on 29th September, 2014 under 

sec on 14 of the Companies Act 2013 for  altera on of clause 127 and 160(d) of the exis ng Ar cles of 

Associa on of the Company.

 (b) passed special resolu on in the mee ng of its shareholders held on 29th September, 2014 under 

sec on 180(1)(c) to increase the borrowing limit up to an amount not exceeding Rs. 300 Crores.

For MR & Associates

Company Secretaries 

[M R Goenka]

Partner

Place : Kolkata FCS No.:4515

Date : 10th August, 2015 C P No.:2551 
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For MR & Associates

Company Secretaries 

[M R Goenka]

Partner

Place : Kolkata FCS No.:4515

Date : 10th August, 2015 C P No.:2551 

“ANNEXURE – A”

(TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015)

To, 

The Members

SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue,

P S Bowbazar,

Kolkata- 700013  

Our report of even date is to be read along with this le er.

 1. Maintenance of Secretarial Records is the responsibility of the Management of the Company. Our 

responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

 2.  We have followed the Audit prac ces and processes as where appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The veriÞca on was done 

on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reßected in Secretarial Records. We believe that the 

processes and prac ces, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

 3.  We have not veriÞed the correctness and appropriateness of Þnancial records and Books of Accounts 

of the Company.

 4.  Wherever required, we have obtained the Management Representa on about the compliance of laws, 

rules and regula ons and happening of events etc.

 5.  The compliance of the provisions of corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regula ons and 

standards is the responsibili es of the management. Our examina on was limited to the veriÞca on of 

procedures on test basis.

 6.  The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

e ciency or e ec veness with which the management has conducted the a airs of the Company.
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FORM NO. MGT-9

Extract of annual return as on the Þnancial year ended on 31st March, 2015

[Pursuant to Sec on 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and 

Administra on) Rules, 2014]

 I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS : 

i) CIN L74140WB1996PLC081521

ii) Registra on Date 13th September, 1996

iii) Name of the Company SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED

iv) Category/Sub-Category of the 

Company 

Public Limited Company 

v) Address of the Registered o ce 

and contact details

25, Ganesh Chandra Avenue, 2nd Floor,  Kolkata-700013

vi) Whether listed company or not YES

vii) Name, Address and contact 

details of Registrar and Transfer 

Agent, if any 

Maheshwari Datama cs Private Limited

6, Mangoe Lane, (2nd Floor), Kolkata - 700 001

Phone : 033-2243 5029/5809;

Fax : 033-2248 4787

E-mail : mdpl@cal.vsnl.net.in

 II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

  All the business ac vi es contribu ng 10 % or more of the total turnover of the Company shall be 

stated : 

Sl.

No

Name and Descrip on of main 

products/services

NIC Code of the Product/ 

service

% to total turnover of the 

company

1. Synthe c Farming Fabric 3548 72%

2. Metal Fourdrinier Wire Cloth 3313 16%

3. EDM Wire 3333 10%

 III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

S. 

No

Name and Address 

of the Company

CIN/GLN HOLDING/ SUBSIDIARY/ 

ASSOCIATE

% of shares 

held

Applicable 

Sec on

NOT APPLICABLE

IV. A)  SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)

  Category-wise Share Holding

Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of 

the year[As on 31-March-2014]

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year[As on 31-March-2015]

% Change

during

the yearDemat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares

A. Promoters

(1) Indian

a) Individual/ HUF 12695969 200 12696169 33.7618 12696169 0 12696169 33.7618 0.0000

b) Central Govt

c) State Govt(s)

d) Bodies Corp. 15127813 0 15127813 40.2281 15127813 0 15127813 40.2281 0.0000

e) Banks / FI

ANNEXURE - IV
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of 

the year[As on 31-March-2014]

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year[As on 31-March-2015]

% Change

during

the yearDemat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares

f) Any other

Total shareholding of Promoter (A) 27823782 200 27823982 73.9899 27823982 0 27823982 73.9899 0.0000

B. Public Shareholding

1. Ins tu ons

a) Mutual Funds

b) Banks / FI

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

Sub-total (B)(1):- 0 0 0 0.0000 0 0 0 0.0000 0.0000

Total shareholding of Promoter 

(A)=(A)(1)+(A)(2)

27823782 200 27823982 73.9899 27823982 0 27823982 73.9899 0.0000

B. Public Shareholding

1. Ins tu ons

a) Mutual Funds 0 679 679 0.0018 0 679 679 0.0018 0.0000

b) Banks/FI 400 12765 13165 0.0350 400 12765 13165 0.0350 0.0000

c) Central Govt

d) State Govt(s)

e) Venture Capital Funds

f) Insurance Companies 763576 0 763576 2.0305 763576 0 763576 2.0305 0.0000

g) FIIs

h) Foreign Venture Capital Funds

i) Others (specify)

Sub-total(B)(1):- 763976 13444 777420 2.0673 763976 13444 777420 2.0673 0.0000

2. Non-Ins tu ons

a) Bodies Corp.

i) Indian 993877 5965021 6958898 18.5052 7044317 15021 7059338 18.7723 1.4433

ii) Overseas 0 27 27 0.0001 0 27 27 0.0001 0.0000

b) Individuals

i) Individual Shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital up to ` 1 lakh

1240133 513427 1753560 4.6631 1250929 505089 1756018 4.6696 0.1402

ii) Individual shareholders 

holding nominal share 

capital in excess of ` 1 

lakh

279450 0 279450 0.7431 176313 0 176313 0.4689 -36.9071

c) Others (specify)

Non Resident Indians 10732 209 10941 0.0291 11791 209 12000 0.0319 9.6792

QualiÞed Foreign Investor

Custodian of Enemy Property
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Category of Shareholders No. of Shares held at the beginning of 

the year[As on 31-March-2014]

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the 

year[As on 31-March-2015]

% Change

during

the yearDemat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares

Foreign Na onals

Clearing Members 845 0 845 0.0022 25 0 25 0.0001 -97.0414

Trusts

Foreign Bodies-D R 

Sub-total(B)(2):- 2525037 6478684 9003721 23.9428 8483375 520346 9003721 23.9429 0.0000

Total Public Shareholding (B)=(B)(1)+ 

(B)(2)

3289013 6492128 9781141 26.0101 9247351 533790 9781141 26.0102 0.0000

C. Shares held by Custodian for GDRs & 

ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C) 31112795 6492328 37605123 100.0000 37071333 533790 37605123 100.0000 0.0000

B) Shareholding of Promoter-

Sl

No

Shareholder’s Name Shareholding at the beginning of the 

year

Shareholding at the end of the year % change in 

share-holding 

during the yearNo. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares of the 

company

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered

to total shares

No. of 

Shares

% of total 

Shares 

of the 

company

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered

to total shares

1 SUNITA KHAITAN 10118900 26.9083 1.1750 10118900 26.9083 100.0000 0.0000

2 RELIANCE SHEET WORKS PVT LTD 7251481 19.2832 3.4680 7251481 19.2832 100.0000 0.0000

3 AMIT COMMERCIAL CO LTD 7230132 19.2265 3.1830 7230132 19.2265 100.0000 0.0000

4 VEDANT  KHAITAN 1000408 2.6603 0.0000 1000408 2.6603 99.9592 0.0000

5 UMAESH KUMAR KHAITAN 306074 0.8139 100.0000 306074 0.8139 100.0000 0.0000

6 SUMANGLA INVESMENT COMPANY LTD 280992 0.7472 100.0000 280992 0.7472 100.0000 0.0000

7 SUNIL KUMAR KHAITAN 274462 0.7299 100.0000 274662 0.7304 100.0000 0.0729

8 SUDHIR KUMAR KHAITAN 274461 0.7299 100.0000 274461 0.7299 100.0000 0.0000

9 ANIL KUMAR KHAITAN 233450 0.6208 100.0000 233450 0.6208 100.0000 0.0000

10 ESQUIRE ENGINEERING LTD 161547 0.4296 100.0000 161547 0.4296 100.0000 0.0000

11 SARITA KHAITAN 159915 0.4252 100.0000 159915 0.4252 100.0000 0.0000

12 RASHMI KHAITAN 118640 0.3155 100.0000 118640 0.3155 100.0000 0.0000

13 SHALIMAR HOLDINGS LTD 112343 0.2987 100.0000 112343 0.2987 100.0000 0.0000

14 SITA DEVI KHAITAN 88512 0.2354 100.0000 88512 0.2354 100.0000 0.0000

15 SAM TUL INVESTMENTS LTD 87328 0.2322 100.0000 87328 0.2322 100.0000 0.0000

16 SASHI PRABHA KHAITAN 67193 0.1787 100.0000 67193 0.1787 100.0000 0.0000

17 KAVITA KHAITAN 53954 0.1435 100.0000 53954 0.1435 100.0000 0.0000

18 AGRO CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LTD 3990 0.0106 100.0000 3990 0.0106 100.0000 0.0000

19 SUNIL KUMAR KHAITAN 200 0.0005 0.0000 0 0.0000 0.0000 -100.0000

TOTAL 27823982 73.9899 10.1473 27823982 73.9899 99.9985 0.0000
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C. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl. 

No.

Name Shareholding at the 

beginning [01.04.14]/end of 

the year [31.03.2015]

Cumula ve Shareholding 

during the year [01.04.14 to 

31.03.2015]

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

1 SUNIL KUMAR KHAITAN

01-04-2014 200 0.0005

25/04/2014 - Transfer 0 0.0000

31-03-2015 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

2 ESQUIRE ENGINEERING LTD

01-04-2014 161547 0.4296

31-03-2015 161547 0.4296 161547 0.4296

3 RELIANCE SHEET WORKS PVT LTD

01-04-2014 7251481 19.2832

31-03-2015 7251481 19.2832 7251481 19.2832

4 SAM TUL INVESTMENTS LTD

01-04-2014 87328 0.2322

31-03-2015 87328 0.2322 87328 0.2322

5 SHALIMAR HOLDINGS LTD

01-04-2014 112343 0.2987

31-03-2015 112343 0.2987 112343 0.2987

6 AMIT COMMERCIAL CO LTD

01-04-2014 7230132 19.2265

31-03-2015 7230132 19.2265 7230132 19.2265

7 AGRO CHEMICALS AND FERTILIZERS LTD

01-04-2014 3990 0.0106

31-03-2015 3990 0.0106 3990 0.0106

8 SUMANGLA INVESMENT COMPANY LTD

01-04-2014 280992 0.7472

31-03-2015 280992 0.7472 280992 0.7472

9 SUNIL KUMAR KHAITAN

01-04-2014 274462 0.7299

25/04/2014 - Transfer 274662 0.7304

31-03-2015 274662 0.7304 274662 0.7304

10 ANIL KUMAR KHAITAN

01-04-2014 233450 0.6208

31-03-2015 233450 0.6208 233450 0.6208

11 RASHMI KHAITAN

01-04-2014 118640 0.3155

31-03-2015 118640 0.3155 118640 0.3155

12 SUDHIR KUMAR KHAITAN

01-04-2014 274461 0.7299

13 UMAESH KUMAR KHAITAN

01-04-2014 306074 0.8139

31-03-2015 306074 0.8139 306074 0.8139
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Sl. 

No.

Name Shareholding at the 

beginning [01.04.14]/end of 

the year [31.03.2015]

Cumula ve Shareholding 

during the year [01.04.14 to 

31.03.2015]

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

No. of shares % of total 

shares of the 

company

14 SARITA KHAITAN

01-04-2014 159915 0.4252

31-03-2015 159915 0.4252 159915 0.4252

15 SUNITA KHAITAN

01-04-2014 10118900 26.9083

31-03-2015 10118900 26.9083 10118900 26.9083

16 SITA DEVI KHAITAN

01-04-2014 88512 0.2354

31-03-2015 88512 0.2354 88512 0.2354

17 KAVITA KHAITAN

01-04-2014 53954 0.1435

31-03-2015 53954 0.1435 53954 0.1435

18 VEDANT  KHAITAN

01-04-2014 1000408 2.6603

31-03-2015 1000408 2.6603 1000408 2.6603

19 SASHI PRABHA KHAITAN

01-04-2014 67193 0.1787

31-03-2015 67193 0.1787 67193 0.1787

D. Shareholding Pa ern of top ten Shareholders (Other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 

ADRs):

Sl. 

No.

Name Shareholding at the 

beginning [01.04.14]/end 

of the year [31.03.2015]

Cumula ve Shareholding 

during the year [01.04.14 to 

31.03.2015]

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

company

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

company

1 ASSET RECONSTRUCTION COMPANY (INDIA) LIMITED #

4/1/2014 5950000 15.8223

28/11/2014 - Transfer 0 0.0000

3/31/2015 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

2 ADROIT  TRADELINK  PRIVATE LIMITED *

4/1/2014 0 0.0000

13/06/2014 - Transfer 158000 0.4202

3/31/2015 158000 0.4202 158000 0.4202

3 LIFE INSURANCE CORPORATION OF INDIA 

4/1/2014 671950 1.7869

3/31/2015 671950 1.7869 671950 1.7869

4 RAJPUTANA INVESTMENT SOCIETY PRIVATE LIMITED 

4/1/2014 172324 0.4582

3/31/2015 172324 0.4582 172324 0.4582
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Sl. 

No.

Name Shareholding at the 

beginning [01.04.14]/end 

of the year [31.03.2015]

Cumula ve Shareholding 

during the year [01.04.14 to 

31.03.2015]

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

company

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

company

5 SHREE RANI SATI INVESTMENT & FINANCE LIMITED #

4/1/2014 100000 0.2659

13/03/2015 - Transfer 73002 0.1941

20/03/2015 - Transfer 0 0.0000

3/31/2015 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

6 THE ORIENTAL INSURANCE COMPANY LIMITED 

4/1/2014 91526 0.2434

3/31/2015 91526 0.2434 91526 0.2434

7 FOUNTAIN VANIJYA PRIVATE LIMITED *

4/1/2014 0 0.0000

20/03/2015 - Transfer 100000 0.2659

3/31/2015 100000 0.2659 100000 0.2659

8 MAGADH TRADERS LTD 

4/1/2014 104245 0.2772

3/31/2015 104245 0.2772 104245 0.2772

9 NIHARIKA INDIA LTD 

4/1/2014 74643 0.1985

3/31/2015 74643 0.1985 74643 0.1985

10 MANGLAM INDIA LIMITED 

4/1/2014 165702 0.4406

3/31/2015 165702 0.4406 165702 0.4406

11 DHM TRADING PVT LTD *

4/1/2014 0 0.0000

13/06/2014 - Transfer 102964 0.2738

3/31/2015 102964 0.2738 102964 0.2738

12 RELIGARE FINVEST LTD #

4/1/2014 158000 0.4202

13/06/2014 - Transfer 0 0.0000

3/31/2015 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

13 MANOJ AGARWAL 

4/1/2014 112105 0.2981

30/06/2014 - Transfer 111955 0.2977

04/07/2014 - Transfer 111830 0.2974

25/07/2014 - Transfer 111330 0.2961

19/09/2014 - Transfer 111310 0.2960

3/31/2015 111310 0.2960 111310 0.2960

14 SANJITA SARDA #

4/1/2014 102964 0.2738

13/06/2014 - Transfer 0 0.0000

3/31/2015 0 0.0000 0 0.0000

* Not in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 01.04.2014. The same has been reßected above since the 

shareholder was one of the Top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2015.

# Ceased to be in the list of Top 10 shareholders as on 31.03.2015. The same is reßected above since the 

shareholder was one of the Top 10 shareholders as on 01.04.2014.
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E. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel

Sl. 

No.

Name Shareholding at the 

beginning [01.04.14]/end 

of the year [31.03.2015]

Cumula ve Shareholding 

during the year [01.04.14 to 

31.03.2015]

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

company

No. of 

shares

% of total 

shares of the 

company

1 SUNIL KUMAR KHAITAN

4/1/2014 274462 0.7299

25/04/2014 - Transfer 274662 0.7304

3/31/2015 274662 0.7304 274662 0.7304

 V. INDEBTEDNESS

  Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment :                   Rs. in lacs.                                                  

Secured Loans 

excluding 

deposits

Unsecured 

Loans

Deposits Total

Indebtedness at the beginning of the Þnancial year 

(1st April,2014)

i) Principal Amount 7608.74 364.64 – 7973.38

ii) Interest due but not paid 16853.29 – – 16853.29

iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –

Total (i+ii+iii) 24462.03 364.64 – 24826.67

Change in indebtedness during the Þnancial year

Addi on 729.23 417.41 – 1146.64

Reduc on 4.50 – – 4.50

Net change 724.73 417.41 – 1142.14

Indebtedness at the end of the Þnancial year 

(31st March,2015)

i) Principal Amount 7607.62 749.64 – 8357.26

ii) Interest due but not paid 17579.14 32.41 – 17611.55

iii) Interest accrued but not due – – – –

Total (i+ii+iii) 25186.76 782.05 – 25968.81
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 VI.  REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL

 A.    Remunera on to Managing Director, Whole- me Directors and/or Manager:

Sl. 

no.

Par culars of Remunera on Name of MD/WTD/ Manager Total Amount

(Rs.in lacs)

Mr. Sunil Khaitan

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in 

sec on 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

22.20 22.20

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961

18.94 18.94

(c) ProÞts in lieu of salary under sec on 17(3) 

Income- tax Act, 1961

NIL NIL

2. Stock Op on NIL NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL

4. Commission NIL NIL

-  as % of proÞt

-  others, specify…

5. Others, please specify

Total (A) 41.14 41.14

Ceiling as per the Act 42.00 42.00

 B. Remunera on to other directors:

Sl. 

no.

Par culars of Remunera on Name of Directors Total Amount

(Rs.in lacs)

Mr. Dipak 

Rudra 

Mr. Prabir Roy Mr. Dipak 

Dasgupta

Ms. Sunanda 

Lahiri

1. Independent Directors

•  Fee for a ending board /

commi ee mee ngs

0.82 0.32 0.77 0.08 1.99

• Commission NIL NIL NIL NIL —

• Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL NIL —

Total (1) 0.82 0.32 0.77 0.08 1.99

2. Other Non-Execu ve 

Directors

Mr. Manash 

Chakraborty 

(Nominee of 

ARCIL)

•  Fee for a ending board /

commi ee mee ngs

0.82 NIL NIL NIL 0.82

• Commission — NIL NIL NIL —

• Others, please specify — NIL NIL NIL —

Total (2) NIL NIL NIL 0.82

Total (B)=(1+2) NIL NIL NIL 2.81

Total Managerial 

Remunera on

NIL NIL NIL 43.95

Overall Ceiling as per the Act All the Independent Directors have been paid only si ng fees for a ending board 

mee ngs and Commi ee mee ngs which is well within the limits prescribed under 

the Companies Act, 2013.
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 C.  REMUNERATION TO KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL OTHER THAN MD/MANAGER/WTD

Sl. 

no.

Par culars of Remunera on Key Managerial Personnel

CFO Company Scretary Total  (Rs.in lacs)

1. Gross salary

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in sec on 

17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961

11.12 7.57 18.69

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax 

Act, 1961

9.44 6.47 15.91

(c) ProÞts in lieu of salary under sec on 17(3) 

Income- tax Act, 1961

NIL NIL NIL

2. Stock Op on NIL NIL NIL

3. Sweat Equity NIL NIL NIL

4. Commission NIL NIL NIL

-  as % of proÞt

- others, specify…

NIL NIL NIL

5. Others, please specify NIL NIL NIL

Total 20.56 14.04 34.60

 VII.  PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT / COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES :

Type Sec on of the 

Companies Act

Brief Descrip on Details of Penalty 

/Punishment 

Compounding Fees 

imposed

Authority [RD/

NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal 

Made, if 

any(give 

details)

A. COMPANY

Penalty Nil

Punishment NIL

Compounding NIL

B. DIRECTORS

Penalty Nil

Punishment NIL

*Compounding 211(2) of the 

Companies Act, 

1956

Nature of other 

income could not 

be disclosed in XBLR 

as there was no 

such column/clarity 

in XBLR format. 

However such nature 

of other disclosed 

income was disclose 

as footnote in XBLR.

Rs. 5000/- on 

Chairman and 

Managing Director

Company Law 

Board

No
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Type Sec on of the 

Companies Act

Brief Descrip on Details of Penalty 

/Punishment 

Compounding Fees 

imposed

Authority [RD/

NCLT/ COURT]

Appeal 

Made, if 

any(give 

details)

217(3) of the 

Companies Act, 

1956

No comment in 

Director s report 

regarding non 

provision of 

con ngent liabili es 

in terms of AS-29

Rs. 5000/- on 

Chairman and 

Managing Director

Rs. 3000/- on Mr. P.K. 

Sarkar, Director

Company Law 

Board

No

211(3A) of the 

Companies Act, 

1956

Non-provision of 

con ngent liabili es 

in terms of AS-29

Rs. 5000/- on 

Chairman and 

Managing Director

Company Law 

Board

No

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN 

DEFAULT

Penalty Nil

Punishment NIL

*Compounding 211(2) of the 

Companies Act, 

1956

Nature of other 

Income not disclosed 

in XBLR because no 

clarity in XBLR format

Rs. 2000/- on 

Company Secretary

Company Law 

Board

No

211(3A) of the 

Companies Act, 

1956

Non-provision of 

con ngent liabili es 

in terms of AS-29

Rs. 3000/- on  

Company Secretary

Company Law 

Board

No

* Related to Þnancial year 2010-11
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STATEMENT OF DISCLOSURE OF REMUNERATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 197 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 

2013 READ WITH RULE 5(1) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL 

PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014

(i) The ra o of the remunera on of Chairman & Managing Director to the median 

remunera on of the employees of the Company for the Þnancial year :

Directors Ra o

Mr. Sunil Khaitan, Chairman & Managing Director 1:49

(ii) The percentage increase in remunera on of Chairman & Managing Director, 

Chief Financial O cer and Company Secretary  in the Þnancial year :

% increase 

(decrease)

Mr. Sunil Khaitan, Chairman & Managing Director NIL

Mr. S.J. Sengupta, CFO 8%

Mr. S.K. Kejriwal, Company Secretary 8%

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remunera on of employees in the 

Þnancial year : 

8.23%

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of company : (as on 31st 

March, 2015)

573

(v) The explana on on the rela onship between average increase in remunera on 

and company performance :

The Company’s opera ng proÞts were higher by  39%. In the wake of di cult 

market condi ons, the average increase in remunera on of all employees a er 

giving e ect of changes in dearness allowance and annual increment considering 

inßa on and performance of respec ve employees was around  8.23 %.

(vi) Comparison of the remunera on of the Key Managerial Personnel against the 

performance of the Company

(Rs. in lacs)

Aggregate remunera on of all key managerial personnel (KMPs) in FY 2014-15       75.74

ProÞt before Tax (PBT) in FY 2014-15      136.27

Remunera on of KMPs (as % of overall performance of the Company)        55%

(vii) Varia ons in the market capitaliza on of the company, price earnings ra o as 

at the closing date of the current Þnancial year and previous Þnancial year and 

percentage increase over or decrease in the market quota ons of the shares 

of the company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out 

with the last public o er : 

As at 31st 

March, 2015

As at 31st 

March, 2014

Varia on %Varia on

Market Capitaliza on Rs. 1293.61 lacs Rs. 1184.56 lacs Rs. 109.05 lacs   9.20%

Price Earnings Ra o “n.m” 8.07 N.A. N.A. 

As at 31st 

March, 2015

Last IPO Bonus Issue 

adjustment

%Varia on

Market Price (In Rs.)  3.44 NIL NIL 9.20%

(viii) Average percen le increase already made in the salaries of employees other 

than the managerial personnel in the last Þnancial year and its comparison 

with the percen le increase in the managerial remunera on and jus Þca on 

thereof and point out if there are any excep onal circumstances for increase in 

the managerial remunera on:

Average percen le increase Is 8.23% in respect of all the employees including 

managerial personnel and there are no excep onal circumstances for increase 

in managerial remunera on.

ANNEXURE - V
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(ix) Comparison of each remunera on of the Key Managerial Personnel against the 

performance of the Company

Remunera on 

(Rs. in lacs)

ProÞt before Tax 

(PBT) (Rs. in lacs)

% of PBT

Mr. Sunil Khaitan, 

Chairman and Managing Director 

41.14 136.27  30.20%

Mr. S.J. Sengupta, CFO 20.56 15.08%

Mr. S.K. Kejriwal, Company Secretary 14.04 10.30%

(x) The key parameters for any variable component of remunera on availed by 

the directors

Variable component of remunera on availed by the directors. NIL

(xi) The ra o of the remunera on of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not 

directors but receive remunera on in excess of the highest paid director during the year :

No employee received remunera on in excess of the highest paid director, being the Chairman and 

Managing Director of the Company

(xii) A rma on that the remunera on is as per the remunera on policy of the Company

The Company a rms that the remunera on paid to employees is in accordance with the 

Remunera on Policy of the Company
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Shalimar Wires Industries Limited

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of SHALIMAR WIRES INDUSTRIES LIMITED (“the 

Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2015, the Statement of ProÞt and Loss, the 

Cash Flow Statement, and a summary of the SigniÞcant Accoun ng Policies and other explanatory informa on 

for the year then ended. 

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the ma ers stated in Sec on 134(5) of the Companies 

act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the prepara on of these  Financial Statements that give a true and fair 

view of the Þnancial posi on, Þnancial performance and cash ßows of the Company in accordance with the 

accoun ng principles generally accepted in India, including the Accoun ng Standards speciÞed under Sec on 

133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014. This responsibility also includes 

maintenance of adequate accoun ng records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding 

the assets of the Company and for preven ng and detec ng frauds and other irregulari es; selec on and 

applica on of appropriate accoun ng policies; making judgements and es mates that are reasonable and 

prudent; and design, implementa on and maintenance of adequate internal Þnancial controls, that were 

opera ng e ec vely for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accoun ng records, relevant to the 

prepara on and presenta on of the Þnancial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Financial Statements based on our audit.

We have taken into account the provisions of the Act, the accoun ng and audi ng standards, and ma ers 

which are required to be included in the audit report under the provisions of the Act and the Rules made 

thereunder.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Audi ng speciÞed under Sec on 143(10) of the 

Act. Those Standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Þnancial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in 

the Þnancial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the Þnancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those 

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal Þnancial control relevant to the Company’s prepara on of 

the Þnancial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate 

in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on whether the Company has in 

place an adequate internal Þnancial control system over Þnancial repor ng and the opera ng e ec veness 

of such controls. An audit also includes evalua ng the appropriateness of the accoun ng policies used and 

the reasonableness of the accoun ng es mates made by the Company’s Directors, as well as evalua ng the 

overall presenta on of the Þnancial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is su cient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

qualiÞed audit opinion on the Financial Statements.

Basis for QualiÞed Opinion

(a) No provision has been made against Long Term and Short Term Loans and Advances given by the Company, 

which remained unrealised for long,  amoun ng to Rs. 40,617,747 and Rs.16,094,626 respec vely (Refer 

Note No.13 & 18)
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(b) No provision has been made for Claims Receivable remaining outstanding for long, amoun ng to 

Rs. 2,697,618. (Refer Note No. 14)

(c) No provision has been made for Trade Receivables, remaining outstanding for long, amoun ng to 

Rs. 3,147,956. (Refer Note No. 16)

(d) No provision has been made for Interest on Debentures and Interest on Term Loan payable to IDBI for 

Rs. 12,334,153 and Rs. 20,529,769 respec vely due to reasons stated in Footnote No (b) (ii) to Note 

No. 4.

(e) The Accoun ng Standard on Con ngent Liabili es have not been fully complied with as disclosed in 

Footnote No. 2 to 4 of Note No. 28, the quantum of non-provision in respect whereof is not ascertained 

pending se lement / disposal of disputes.

(f) Non-provision of Items indicated in (a) to (e) above cons tute a departure from the Accoun ng Standards 

referred to in Sec on 133 of the Act. Without considering Item Nos. (e) Above, whose impact on the 

Company’s Statement of ProÞt and Loss is presently non-ascertainable, had the provisions indicated in 

Item Nos. (a) to (d) been made,

 (i) The Loss for the year would have increased by Rs. 95,421,869

 (ii) Long Term and Short Term Loans & Advances would have decreased by Rs.40, 617,747 and 

Rs. 16,094,626 respec vely

 (iii) Other Non-Current Assets would have decreased by Rs. 2,697,681    

 (iv) Trade Receivables would have decreased by Rs. 3,147,956     

 (v) Other Current Liabili es would have increased by Rs. 32,863,922 and

 (vi) The Shareholders’ Fund would have been lower by Rs. 95,421,869 

QualiÞed Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our informa on and according to the explana ons given to us, except for the 

e ects of the ma ers described in the Basis for QualiÞed Opinion paragraph above, the aforesaid Financial 

Statements give the informa on required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view 

in conformity with the accoun ng principles generally accepted in India, of the state of a airs of the Company 

as at 31st March, 2015 and its loss and its cash ßows for the year ended on that date.

Emphasis of Ma ers

We draw your a en on to the following ma ers in the Notes to the Financial Statements:

1. Note No. 28 to the Þnancial statements, which describe the uncertainty related to the outcome of the 

lawsuits indicated therein.

2. Note No. 30 to the Þnancial statements which describe the change in the method of calcula ng 

deprecia on for the year, the accoun ng treatment of the same and its impact on the Þnancial 

statements.

3. Note No. 35 in the Þnancial statements which indicates that the Company has accumulated losses 

and its net worth has been fully eroded, the Company has incurred net loss during the current and 

previous years, and the Company’s current liabili es exceeded its current assets as at the Balance Sheet 

date. These condi ons, along with other ma ers set forth in Notes to Financial Statements, indicate 

the existence of a material uncertainty that may cast signiÞcant doubt about the Company’s ability to 

con nue as a going concern. However, these Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared 

on a going concern basis for the reasons stated in the said Note.

Our opinion is not modiÞed in respect of these ma ers.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
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i) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2015 issued by the Central Government in terms 

of Sub-sec on (11) of Sec on 143 of the Act, we enclose in the Annexure a statement on the ma ers 

speciÞed in the said Order, to the extent applicable to the Company.

ii) As required by Sec on 143(3) of the Act, we report that

 a) We have sought and, except for the ma ers described in the Basis for QualiÞed Opinion paragraph, 

obtained all the informa on and explana ons which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 

necessary for the purpose of our audit;

 b) Except for the possible e ects of the ma ers described in the Basis for QualiÞed Opinion paragraph 

above, in our opinion proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company 

so far as appears from our examina on of those books.

 c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of ProÞt and Loss and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report 

are in agreement with the books of account;

 d) Except for the possible e ects of the ma ers described in the Basis for QualiÞed Opinion paragraph, 

in our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of ProÞt and Loss and Cash Flow Statement comply 

with the Accoun ng Standards speciÞed under Sec on 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the 

Companies(Accounts) Rules, 2014;

 e) The ma ers described in the Basis for QualiÞed Opinion paragraph above, in our opinion, may have 

an adverse e ect on the func oning of the Company;

 f) The going concern ma er described in sub-paragraph (3) under the Emphasis of Ma ers paragraph 

above, in our opinion, may have an adverse e ect on the func oning of the Company;

 g) On the basis of wri en representa ons received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2015 taken 

on record by the Board of Directors, none of the Director is disqualiÞed as on 31st March, 2015 from 

being appointed as a director in terms of Sec on 164(2) of the Act.

 h) With respect to the other ma ers to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 

of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our informa on 

and according to the explana ons given to us:

  i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending li ga ons on its Þnancial posi on, wherever 

ascertainable – Refer Note No. 28       

  ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including deriva ve contracts for which 

there was any material foreseeable loss.

  iii. The Board for Industrial and Financial Reconstruc on, vide its Order dated 10th June, 2010, has 

exempted the Company from transferring any amount to the Investor Educa on and Protec on 

Fund.

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FR No. 302034E

P. K. BHATTACHARYA

Place : Kolkata Partner

Date : 27th May, 2015 (Membership No. 015899)
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Annexure to the Auditors Report

The Annexure referred to in our report to the members of M/S, Shalimar Wires Industries Limited for the 
year ended 31st March, 2015. 

We report that :

(i) (a) Whether the company is maintaining proper 
records showing full par culars, including 
quan ta ve details and  situa on of  Þxed 
assets;

(i) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full 
par culars, including quan ta ve details and situa on of 
its Þxed assets.

(b) Whether these Þxed assets have been 
physically veriÞed by the management at 
reasonable intervals; whether any material 
discrepancies were no ced on such 
veriÞca on and if so, whether the same 
have been properly dealt with in the books 
of account;

(b) The Þxed assets, except those at the Strip & Wire Unit 
at Nasik, which is under closure, have been physically 
veriÞed under a phased program of physical veriÞca on. To 
the best of our knowledge, no material discrepancies were 
no ced on such veriÞca on.

(ii) (a) Whether physical veriÞca on of inventory 
has been conducted at reasonable intervals 
by the management;

(ii) (a) The Inventories have been physically veriÞed by the 
management at reasonable intervals during the year.

(b) Are the procedures of physical veriÞca on 
of inventory followed by the management 
reasonable and adequate in rela on to the 
size of the company and the nature of its 
business If not, the inadequacies in such 
procedures should be reported;

(b) In our opinion and according to the informa on and 
explana ons given to us, the procedure of physical 
veriÞca on of stocks followed by the management is 
reasonable and adequate in rela on to the size of the 
Company and nature of its business.

(c) Whether the company is maintaining 
proper records of inventory and whether 
any material discrepancies were no ced on 
physical veriÞca on and if so, whether the 
same have been properly dealt with in the 
books of account;

(c) On the basis of our examina on, we are of the opinion that 
the Company is maintaining proper records of inventory. 
Discrepancies no ced on such physical veriÞca on, which 
were not material, have been properly dealt with in the 
books of account.

(iii) Whether the company has granted any 
loans, secured or unsecured to companies, 
Þrms or other par es covered in the register 
maintained under sec on 189 of the 
Companies Act. If so,

(iii) The Company has granted Unsecured Loans to two 
companies covered in the register maintained under 
Sec on 189 of the Companies Act, 2013.

(a) Whether receipt of the principal amount and 
interest are also regular; and

(a) Receipt of principal amount and interest are not regular.

(b) If overdue amount is more than  rupees one 
lakh, whether reasonable  steps have been 
taken by the company for recovery of the 
principal and interest;

(b) The aforesaid loans to Related Par es Rs. 16,094,626 
have become overdue and are doub ul of recovery. As 
explained to us legal ac on have been ini ated by the 
Company in these regards.

(iv) Is there an adequate internal control system 
commensurate with the size of the company 
and the nature of its business, for the 
purchase of inventory and Þxed assets and 
for the sale of goods and services? Whether 
there is a con nuing failure to correct major 
weaknesses in internal control system.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the informa on and 
explana ons given to us, there is an adequate internal 
control procedure commensurate with the size of the 
Company and the nature of its business, for the purchase 
of inventory and Þxed assets and for the sale of goods. 
During the course of our audit, we have not observed any 
con nuing failure to correct major weaknesses in internal 
control system.
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(v) In case the company has accepted deposits, 
whether the direc ves issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India and the provisions of sec ons 73 
to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act and the rules framed there 
under, where applicable, have been complied 
with? If not, the nature of contraven ons 
should be stated; If an order has been passed 
by Company Law Board or Na onal Company 
Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any 
court or any other tribunal, whether the 
same has been complied with or not?

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposit within the 
meaning of Sec on 73 of the Companies Act.

(vi) Where maintenance of cost records has 
been speciÞed by the Central Government 
under sub-sec on (1) of sec on 148 of the 
Companies Act, whether such accounts and 
records have been made and maintained.

(vi) The Central Government has speciÞed maintenance of cost 
records under Sec on 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 
for Metal Wire Cloth manufactured by the Company. We 
have broadly reviewed such accounts and records and we 
are of the opinion that the accounts and records have been 
made and maintained by the Company. However, we have 
not made any detailed examina on of such records in order 
to ascertain whether those are correct or up to date.

(vii) (a) Is the company regular in deposi ng 
undisputed statutory dues including 
provident fund, employees' state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax,  wealth  tax, service 
tax, duty of customs, duty of excise, value 
added tax, cess and any other statutory 
dues with the appropriate authori es and  if 
not,  the extent of the arrears of outstanding 
statutory dues as at the last day of the 
Þnancial year concerned for a period of more 
than six months from the date they became 
payable, shall be indicated by the auditor

(vii) (a) According to the records, the Company is generally 
regular in deposi ng undisputed statutory dues including 
Provident Fund,   Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, 
Sales Tax, Custom Duty, Excise Duty and other statutory 
dues with appropriate authori es, except the following 
amounts  rela ng to Discon nued Opera on which are 
outstanding as on 31st March 2015 for a period of more 
than six months from the date of becoming payable:

Name of   Act    Nature of 
Dues     

Years Amount

(Rs) in Lacs)

CST ACT 1958     Sales Tax 2003-2004     0.72

Bombay Stamp 
Act 1958.

Stamp Duty 
and interest 
thereon

2001-2010 210.32*

As explained to us, the Company does not have any dues in respect of 
Wealth Tax, Service Tax and Cess.

* Also refer to Note No.36(b).
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(b) In case dues of income tax or sales tax or 
wealth tax or service tax or duty of customs 
or duty of excise or value added tax or cess 
have not been deposited on account of any 
dispute, then the amounts involved and the 
forum where dispute is pending shall be 
men oned. (A mere representa on to the 
concerned Department shall not cons tute 
a dispute).

(b) The disputed statutory dues aggrega ng to Rs 4701.41 
Lacs (inclusive of amounts not provided in Þnancial 
statement) that have not been deposited on account of 
ma ers pending before appropriate authori es are as 
under:

Nature of dues Amount

(Rs in Lacs)

Year which 
it relates

Forum

Tax & Penalty 0.11 1988-1989 The Addi onal 

Commissioner 

of Commercial 

Taxes, Kolkata

Tax, Interest & 

Penalty

4.22 1998-99 & 

2002-2003

The Addi onal 

Commissioner 

of Commercial 

Taxes, Kolkata

Tax & Penalty 8.17 1980-81, 

1993-94,  

2000-01,   

2003-04  

2004-05

The West Bengal 

Commercial 

Taxes Appellate 

& Revision Board, 

Kolkata

Tax & Penalty 4.73 2001-02 The West Bengal 

Taxa on Tribunal

Tax & Penalty 16.79 2005-06  

2006-07  

2007-08   

2008-09

The West Bengal 

Commercial 

Taxes Appellate 

& Revision Board, 

Kolkata

Tax, Interest & 

Penalty

190.53 1999-00 The Sr.Joint 

Commissioner 

of  Commercial 

Taxes

Tax, Interest & 

Penalty

130.12 2004-05 The West Bengal 

Commercial 

Taxes Appellate 

& Revision Board, 

Kolkata

Tax / CST 34.07 1988-89

2010-11  

2011-12

The Joint 

Commissioner 

of Commercial 

Taxes, Kolkata

Tax, Interest & 

Penalty

529.26 1998-99   

2002-03

The Addi onal 

Commissioner 

of Commercial 

Taxes, Kolkata
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Tax, Interest & 
Penalty

340.56 1996-97  
2001-02

The Addi onal 
Commissioner 
of Commercial 
Taxes, Kolkata

Tax, Interest & 
Penalty

795.60 1993-94

1995-96

1997-98

2000-01

2003-04

The West 
Bengal 
Commercial 
Taxes Appellate 
& Revision 
Board, Kolkata

Tax & Penalty 75.08 2005-06

2006-07

2007-08

The West 
Bengal 
Commercial 
Taxes Appellate 
& Revision 
Board, Kolkata.

Tax & Penalty 17.19 2008-09

2009-10

The West 
Bengal 
Commercial 
Taxes Appellate 
& Revision 
Board, Kolkata

Tax & Penalty 1939.74 1987-97  
1992-93

1994-95  
1999-00  
2002-03  
2003-04  
2009-10

Commissioner 
(Appeals) 
Central Excise, 
Kolkata-IV

Tax 11.23 1989-90  
2005-06

Hon’ble High 
Court, Mumbai

Tax & Penalty 4.34 2003-04 Commissioner 
(Appeals) 
Nashik

Tax & Penalty 1.73 2002-03 CESTAT, 
Mumbai

Tax 0.62 1999-2002 The Asst. 
Commissioner, 
Sales Tax, Delhi

Tax & Penalty 5.50 1999-2000  
2002-03

The Asst. 
Commissioner, 
Sales Tax, 
Ahmedabad

Tax 573.25 2000-03 Commssioner, 
Customs, Nasik 
& Mumbai

Tax 11.69 1989-90 & 
1991-92

Hon'ble High 
Court, Mumbai

Tax & Penalty 6.88 2007-08  
2008-09

Hon’ble High 
Court, Mumbai
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(c) Whether the amount required to be 
transferred to investor educa on and 
protec on fund in accordance with the 
relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 
1956 (1 of 1956) and rules made thereunder 
has been transferred to  such fund within 

me.

(c) The Company is exempted from transferring any amount 
to Investor Educa on & Protec on Fund vide the Order of 
BIFR dated 10th June, 2010 .

(viii) Whether in case of a company which has 
been registered for a period not less than 
Þve years, its accumulated losses at the end 
of the Þnancial year are not less than Þ y 
per cent of its net worth and whether it has 
incurred cash losses in such Þnancial year and 
in the immediately preceding Þnancial year;

(viii) The accumulated losses of the company at the end of the 
Þnancial year have exceeded its net worth and also the 
company has incurrered cash losses in the current Þnancial 
year and in the immediately preceding Þnancial year.

(ix) Whether the company has defaulted in 
repayment of dues to a Þnancial ins tu on or 
bank or debenture holders? If yes, the period 
and amount of default to be reported;

(ix) The Company has made following defaults in repayment 
of dues to Financial Ins tu on and Debenture Holders:

Financial Ins tu on Amount (Rs 
in laces)

Period of default

Term Loan

ARCIL-Term Loan 1709.00 Oct, 13 to 
March,15

IDBI-Term Loan 823.57 Sept, 13 to 
March, 15

SICOM 47.58 March, 10 to 
March, 14

Sale Tax Loan (Under Sales Tax 
Deferral Scheme)

269.06 March, 10 to 
March, 14

Debenture:

Non Conver ble Debenture 10.12 Feb, 99      to      
Feb, 01

Finance Lease:

IDBI 83.63 2006-07  to         
2014-15

Also Refer to Footnotes No (a) to (c) of Note No 4 and Note No 6 to 

Financial Statements.

(x) Whether the company has given any 

guarantee for loans taken by others from 

bank or Þnancial ins tu ons, the terms and 

condi ons whereof are prejudicial to the 

interest of the company;

(x) The Company has not given any guarantee for loans taken 

by others from any bank or Þnancial ins tu on.

(xi) Whether term loans were applied for the 

purpose for which the loans were obtained;

(xi) The Company has neither taken any term loan during the 

year nor applied any part of the term loans taken in earlier 

years.
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(xii) Whether any fraud on or by the company has 

been no ced or reported  during the year; If 

yes, the nature and the amount involved is to 

be indicated.

(xii) Based upon the audit procedure performed and the 

informa on and explana on given by the Company, 

we report that no fraud on or by the Company has been 

no ced or reported during the year that causes the 

Þnancial statements materially misstated.

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO.

Chartered Accountants

FR No. 302034E

P. K. BHATTACHARYA

Place : Kolkata Partner

Date : 27th May, 2015 (Membership No. 015899)
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PARTCULARS Note No. As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

I. EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1. Shareholders' Fund

a) Share Capital 2  368,645,112  368,645,112 

b) Reserves and Surplus 3  (1,826,517,702)  (1,457,872,590)  (1,822,656,511)  (1,454,011,399)

2. Non-Current Liabili es

a) Long Term Borrowings 4  366,352,216  508,680,149 

b) Deferred Tax Liabili es (Net) 5 – –

c) Other Long Term Liabili es 6  44,770,584  46,707,997 

d) Long Term Provisions 7  51,950,990  463,073,790  39,970,190  595,358,336 

3. Current Liabili es

a) Trade Payables 8  104,667,563  78,971,893 

b) Other Current Liabili es 9  2,314,425,627  2,053,040,063 

c) Short Term Provisions 10  5,059,059  2,424,152,249  7,765,354  2,139,777,310 

Grand Total  1,429,353,449  1,281,124,248 

II. ASSETS

1. Non-Current Assets

a) Fixed Assets 11

i) Tangible Assets  396,729,216  411,767,271 

ii) Intangible Assets  10,578,581  16,002,958 

iii) Capital Work-in-Progress  174,763,883  96,234,035 

b) Non-Current Investments 12  354,728  516,701 

c) Long Term Loans and Advances 13  90,016,792  80,236,225 

d) Other Non-Current Assets 14  36,657,591  709,100,789  32,065,724  636,822,913 

2. Current Assets

a) Inventories 15  294,557,549  278,575,573 

b) Trade Receivables 16  351,085,295  291,692,243 

c) Cash and Cash Equivalent 17  15,823,851  22,374,198 

d) Short Term Loans and Advances 18  58,354,580  51,066,291 

e)  Other Current Assets 19  431,385  720,252,659  593,029  644,301,334 

Grand Total  1,429,353,449  1,281,124,248 

SigniÞcant Accoun ng Policies  1   

Other Disclosers  28-41   

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are an intrigral part of the Þnancial statements.   

As per our report of even date.    

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO. Sunil  Khaitan   Dipak Dasgupta

Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director

FR NO. 302034E    

CA P. K. Bha acharya    

Partner    

Membership No.015899 S. J. Sengupta  S. K. Kejriwal

Kolkata 27th May, 2015 Sr V.P.& CFO  Company Secretary

BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31ST MARCH, 2015

(Amount in Rs.)
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PARTCULARS Note No 2014-15 2013-14

I. Revenue from Opera ons 20

a) Sale of products  1,029,428,427  981,973,276 

Less : Excise Duty  93,628,824  84,359,565 

Net Turnover  935,799,603  897,613,711 

b) Sale of Services  –    –   

c) Other Opera ng Revenues  8,514,551  944,314,154  8,682,788  906,296,499 

II. Other Income 21  12,240,700  17,152,957 

III. Total Revenue ( I + II )  956,554,854  923,449,456 

IV. Expenses :

Cost of Materials Consumed 22  279,001,759  325,290,542 

Purchases of Stock in Trade  –    –   

Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, 

Work in Progress  & Stock in Trade

23  (3,055,721)  (12,304,541)

Employees BeneÞts 24  200,960,324  182,897,460 
Finance Cost 25  86,203,922  68,655,813 
Depricia on and Amor sa on 28  66,747,740  66,829,803 
Less : Considered Under Extraordinary Item  6,865,511  59,882,230  –    66,829,803 
Other Expenses 26  319,935,040  314,946,405 
Total Expenses  942,927,554  946,315,483 

V. ProÞt before excep onal and extraordinary 

items and tax. (III - IV)

 13,627,300  (22,866,027)

VI. Excep onal Items 27(i)  (218,099)  –    (46,536,526)
VII. ProÞt before extraordinary items and tax (V - VI)  13,845,399  23,670,499 
VIII. Extraordinary Items 27(ii)  6,865,511  –   
IX. ProÞt before tax (VII - VIII)  6,979,889  23,670,499 
X. Tax Expenses:

i)  Current Tax  –   
ii) Deferred Tax  –    –    –   

XI. ProÞt (Loss) for the period from con nuing 

opera ons (IX - X)  

 6,979,889  23,670,499 

XII. ProÞt ( Loss ) from discon nuing opera ons  (10,841,079)  (8,888,390)

XIII. Tax Expenses of discon nuing opera ons  –    –   
XIV. ProÞt (Loss) from discon nuing opera ons 

(a er tax) (XII - XIII)

 (10,841,079)  (8,888,390)

XV. ProÞt ( Loss ) for the period  ( XI - XIV )  (3,861,191)  14,782,110 

XVI. Earnings Per Equity Share: 39

i)  Basic  (0.10)  0.39 

ii) Diluted  (0.10)  0.39 

Summary of SigniÞcant Accoun ng Policies 1

Other Disclosures 28-41

The accompanying notes 1 to 41 are an intrigral part of the Þnancial statements.   

As per our report of even date.    

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO. Sunil  Khaitan   Dipak Dasgupta

Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director

FR NO. 302034E    

CA P. K. Bha acharya    

Partner    

Membership No.015899 S. J. Sengupta  S. K. Kejriwal

Kolkata 27th May, 2015 Sr V.P.& CFO  Company Secretary

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS  FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(Amount in Rs.)
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       PARTCULARS  FOR THE 

 YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2015 

 FOR THE 

 YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2014

A. Cash Flow from Opera ng Ac vi es :

Net ProÞt (Loss) before Tax  (3,861,191)  14,782,110 

Adjustments For :

Deprecia on and amor sa on expense  61,028,773  68,391,120 

(ProÞt)/Loss on Sale/Discard of Tangible Fixed Assets  297,994  1,679,252 

Excep onal Items  (218,099)  (46,536,526)

Extraordinary Items  9,207,832 –

Interest Income  (1,784,137)  (1,268,015)

Net (Gain)/Loss on Sale of Investment –  (2,263,260)

Finance Cost  86,203,922  68,655,813 

Sundry Balances Wri en O   347,767  16,806 

Unspent Liabili es Wri en Back  (3,585,871)  (3,022,991)

Provision for Doub ul Debt –  457,798 

Debts and advances wri en o  2,662,555  2,294,810 

Opera ng ProÞt before Working Capital Changes  150,461,519  103,186,917 

Adjustments For :

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Long Term Liabili es  1,648,457  (3,475,237)

Increase/(Decrease) in Long Term Provisions  11,980,800  4,627,092 

Increase/(Decrease) in Short Term Provisions  (2,706,295)  1,471,866 

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade Payables  25,695,670  9,457,269 

Increase/(Decrease) in Other Current Liabili es  261,385,564  27,630,413 

Decrease/(Increase) in Non-Current Investment – –

Decrease/(Increase) in Long Term Loans & Advances  (9,584,517)  (6,499,898)

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Non-Current Assets  (4,939,634)  (16,377,361)

Decrease/(Increase) in Inventories  (15,981,976)  (11,394,417)

Decrease/(Increase) in Trade Receivables  (62,055,607)  11,461,143 

Decrease/(Increase) in Short Term Loans & Advances  (7,288,289)  7,043,891 

Decrease/(Increase) in Other Current Assets  161,644  533,045 

Cash Generated from/(used in) Opera ng Ac vi es 348,777,336 127,664,723

Tax Expense  (196,050)  (153,681)

Net Cash Flow from/(used in) Opera ng Ac vi es (A) 348,581,286 127,511,042

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(Amount in Rs.)
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       PARTCULARS  FOR THE 

 YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2015 

 FOR THE 

 YEAR ENDED 

 31.03.2014

B. Cash Flow from Inves ng Ac vi es :

Interest Income  1,784,137  1,268,015 

Proceeds from sale of Non-Current Investments –  4,458,959 

Addi on to Tangible Fixed Assets  (131,461,654)  (96,822,903)

Addi on to Intangible Fixed Assets – –

Sale of Tangible Fixed Assets 2,859,641 834,892

Net Cash ßow from/(used in) Inves ng Ac vi es (B)  (126,817,877)  (90,261,037)

C. Cash Flow from Financing Ac vi es :

Proceeds from Equity Shares – 11,900,000

Repayment from Long term Borrowings  (142,327,933)  (23,986,019)

Excep onal Items  218,099  46,536,526 

Interest Expense  (86,203,922)  (68,655,813)

Net Cash Flow from Financing Ac vi es (C)  (228,313,756)  (34,205,306)

Net Increase/(Decrease ) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (6,550,347)  3,044,698.85 

Closing Balance of Cash & cash Equivalents 15,823,851  22,374,198 

Opening Balance of Cash & Cash Equivalents 22,374,198  19,329,499 

Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents  (6,550,347)  3,044,699.34 

As per our report of even date.

For S. S. KOTHARI & CO. Sunil  Khaitan   Dipak Dasgupta

Chartered Accountants Managing Director  Director

FR NO. 302034E    

CA P. K. Bha acharya    

Partner    

Membership No.015899 S. J. Sengupta  S. K. Kejriwal

Kolkata, 27th May, 2015 Sr V.P.& CFO  Company Secretary

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2015

(Amount in Rs.)

Notes :

1. The above Cash Flow Staement has been prepared under the " Indirect Method " as set out in Accoun ng 

Standard -3 on Cash Flow Statement.

2. Addi on to Fixed Assets include movement of Capital Work in Progress during the year.

3. Proceeds from Long Term Borrowings are shown net of repayments.

4. Figures in brackets represent cash ou low from respec ve ac vi es.

5. Cash & Cash Equivalents do not include any amount which is not available to the Company for its use.

6. As breakup of Cash & cash equivalents is also available in Note No.17, reconciliaton of items of Cash & 

cash equivalents as per Cash Flow Statement with the equivalent items reported in the Balance Sheet is 

not required and hence not provided. 
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NOTE NO. : 1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES: 

The Þnancial statements are prepared under the historical cost conven on and are in accordance with the generally 
accepted accoun ng principles in India and provisions of the Companies Act,2013.The signiÞcant accoun ng policies 
followed by the Company are stated below:

1) Recogni on of Income & Expenditure :

 Income and Expenditure are recognised on accrual basis.

2) Fixed Assets :

 Fixed Assets are stated at original cost net of accumulated deprecia on and impairments.

 Cost includes acquisi on price, a ributable expenses (including in respect of assets taken on lease) and pre-
opera onal expenses including Þnance charges and issue expenses, wherever applicable. 

 Intangible assets are recorded at the considera on paid for acquisi on of such assets and are carried at cost 
of acquisi on less accumulated amor za on and impairment, if any.

 Expenditure (including Þnancing cost rela ng to borrowed funds for construc on or acquisi on of Fixed assets) 
incurred on projects under implementa on are being treated as pre-opera ve expenses pending alloca on to 
the assets and are shown under "Capital Work in Progress".

 Impairment Loss is recognised where applicable when the carrying amount of the Fixed Assets of a Cash 
genera ng unit exceeds its market value or value in use, whichever is higher.

3) Deprecia on and Amor sa on :

 Deprecia on has been charged on all Tangible Assets based on es mated useful life of assets as speciÞed in 
Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013.

 Cost of Leasehold Land and installa on and other expenses incurred on machineries taken on lease are 
amor sed over the period of the respec ve lease.

 Cost of acquisi on of Patents are amor sed over the period of patent right.

 Technical Knowhow fees is amor sed over a period of 5 years with e ect from the year of commencement of 
commercial produc on.

4) Inventories :

 Inventories are stated at 'cost or net realisable value, whichever is lower'. Cost comprise all cost of purchase, 
cost of conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present loca on and condi on. 
Cost formulae used are 'Weighted Average Cost'.

5) Investments :

 Long Term Investments are carried at cost and Provision for diminu on is made to recognise a decline, other 
than temporary, in the value of long term investments, script wise.

6) Foreign Currency Transac ons :

 (a) Transac ons in Foreign currency are ini ally recorded at the exchange rate at which the transac on is 
carried out.

 (b) Monetary Assets and Liabili es related to foreign currency transac ons remaining outstanding at the 
year end are translated at the year end rates.

 (c) Non-monetary items which are carried at historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are reported 
using the exchange rate at the date of the transac on.

 (d) Any income or expense on account of exchange di erence either on se lement or on transla on at the 
year end is recognized in the Statement of ProÞt and Loss.

 (e) In case of items which are covered by forward exchange contracts, the di erence between the year 
end rate and the rate on the date of the contract is recognized as exchange di erence. The premium or 
discount on forward exchange contracts is recognized over the period of the respec ve contract.

7) Research & Development Expenditure :

 Revenue expenditure is charged to Statement of ProÞt and Loss and Capital expenditure is added to the cost 
of Þxed assets in the year in which it is incurred.

8) Employee BeneÞts :

 (a) Short-term employee beneÞts are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the 
Statement of ProÞt and Loss of the year in which the related service is rendered.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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 (b) Post employment and other long-term employee beneÞts are recognized as an expense in the Statement 
of ProÞt & Loss for the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at 
the present value of the amount payable determined using actuarial valua ons.

  Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post employment and other long-term employee beneÞts are 
recognized in the Statement of ProÞt and Loss.

9) Provisions, Con ngent Liabili es and Con ngent Assets :

 Provisions are recognised in respect of obliga ons where, based on the evidence available, their existence at 
the Balance Sheet date is considered probable. Con ngent Liabili es are shown by way of Notes to Accounts 
in respect of obliga ons where, based on the evidence available, their existence at the Balance Sheet date is 
not considered probable, hence not provided for. Con ngent assets are not recognised in the accounts.

10) Borrowing Costs :

 Borrowing Costs that are a ributable to the acquisi on or construc on of qualifying assets are capitalised as 
part of the cost of such assets. A qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes a substan al period of me to 
get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are charged to Statement of ProÞt and Loss in the period 
in which they are incurred.

11) Taxes on Income :

 Income-tax expense comprises Current tax and Deferred tax charge or credit. Provision for current tax is 
made on the assessable income at the tax rate applicable to the relevant assessment year. The Deferred 
tax Asset and Deferred tax Liability is calculated by applying tax rate and tax laws that have been enacted or 
substan vely enacted by the Balance Sheet date. Deferred tax Assets arising mainly on account of brought 
forward losses and unabsorbed deprecia on under tax laws, are recognised only if there is a virtual certainity 
of its realisa on, supported by convincing evidence. Deferred tax Assets on account of other ming di erences 
are recognised only to the extent there is a reasonable certainity that the assets can be realized in future.

12) Impairment of Assets :

 Impairment loss, if any,  is recognised to the extent, the carrying amount of assets exceed their recoverable 
amount. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. Value in use is the 
present value of es mated future cash ßows expected to arise from the con nuing use of an asset and from 
its disposal at the end of its useful life. 

 Impairment losses recognised in prior years are reversed when there is an indica on that the impairment 
losses recognised no longer exist or have decreased.

 Such reversals are recognised as an increase in carrying amount of assets to the extent that it does not 
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amor sa on or deprecia on) had no 
impairment loss been recognised in previous years.

 A er impairment, deprecia on or amor sa on on assets is provided on the revised carrying amount of the 
respec ve asset over its remaining useful life.

13) Opera ng Cycle :

 All Assets and Liabili es have been classiÞed as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal opera ng 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III of the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of services 
provided and me between the rendering of services and their realiza on in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its opera ng cycle as less than 12 months for the purpose of current and non-
current classiÞca on of assets and liabili es.

14) Cash ßow statement :

 Cash ßows are reported using the indirect method, whereby proÞt before tax is adjusted for the e ects 
of transac ons of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future opera ng cash receipts or 
payments and item of income or expenses associated with inves ng or Þnancing ßows. The cash ßows from 
opera ng, inves ng and Þnancing ac vi es of the Company are segregated.

15) Segment Repor ng :

 Segments are iden Þed based on the dominant source and nature of risks and returns and the internal 
organisa on and management structure. The accoun ng policies adopted for segment repor ng are in line 
with the accoun ng policies of the Company. In addi on, the following speciÞc accoun ng policies have been 
followed for segment repor ng :

 (a) Inter segment revenue is accounted for based on the transac on price agreed to between segments 
which is primarily market led.

 (b) Revenue and expenses are iden Þed to segments on the basis of their rela onship to the opera ng 
ac vi es of the segment. Revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise as a whole and are not 
allocable to segments on a reasonable basis, have been disclosed as "Unallocable".
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NOTE : 2 Share Capital

As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

a) Authorised :   

i) 50,000,000 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each  100,000,000  100,000,000 

ii) 5,000,000 Preference Shares of  Rs. 100/- each  500,000,000  500,000,000 

        Total  600,000,000  600,000,000 

b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid Up :

i) Equity Shares Fully Paid Up :

37,605,123 Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- each  75,210,246  75,210,246

ii) Preference Share Fully Paid Up :

2,934,349, 8% Cumula ve Redeemable 

Preference Share of Rs. 100/- each

 293,434,866  293,434,866 

Total  368,645,112  368,645,112 

c) Reconcilia on of the number of Equity Shares Outstanding :

Par culars 2014-15 2013-14

Nos Nos Nos Nos

Number of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  37,605,123  31,655,123

Add : Number of shares allo ed as fully paid up during the year 

to lenders on conversion of loan into share capital without 

payment being received in cash.

– –  5,950,000  5,950,000 

Number of Shares outstanding at the end of the year  37,605,123 37,605,123

d) Reconcilia on of the number of Preference Shares Outstanding :

Par culars 2014-15 2013-14

Nos Nos Nos Nos

Number of Shares outstanding at the beginning of the year  2,934,349  2,934,349 

Number of Shares outstanding at the end of the year  2,934,349  2,934,349

e) Shares in the Company held by each Shareholders holding more than 5% Shares. 

Name of Shareholders Number of 

Shares held 

Nos

% of Share

held

Nos

Number of 

Shares held 

Nos

% of Share

held

Nos

Sunita Khaitan  10,118,900  26.91  10,118,900 26.91

Reliance Sheet Works Pvt. Ltd.  7,251,481  19.28  7,251,481 19.28

Amit Commercial Co. Ltd.  7,230,132  19.23  7,230,132 19.23

Asset Reconstruc on Co. Ltd.  5,950,000  15.82 5,950,000 15.82

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amount in Rs.)

f) In terms of the Order dated 10th June,2010 of the BIFR(SS-10), 5,950,000 fully paid Equity Shares of Rs. 2/- have been issued at par during 
2013-14 to ARCIL towards conversion of part of the term loan due to them for Rs. 11,900,000/- without payment being received 
in cash.Further the company is liable to issue In future 5,150,000 Equity Shares at par to the lenders as per Clause 11.5(b) of the 
BIFR Order(SS-10).

g) Rights, Preferences and Restric ons a ached to shares :

 i) Each Equity Share holder holding shares of Rs. 2/- each is eligible for one vote per share held and are en tled to receive 
dividends as declared from me to me. In the event of liquida on the equity shares holdes are eligible to receive the 
remaining assets of the Company a er distribu on of all preferen al creditors in propor on to their Shareholdings.

 ii) 8% Cumula ve Redeemable Preference shares issued as per IDBI sanc on dated 13th June 2006 by way of conver ng their 
overdue interestand is redeemable in sixteen instalments commencing from 1st April 2017 and endinh on 1st January 2021. 
Cumula ve Preference dividend is expected to be paid annualy over a period of four years commencing from the Þnancial 
years 2017-18, based on the projected proÞtability and cashßows of the Company.
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NOTE : 3 Reserve & Surplus 

PARTICULARS Balance as at

1st April, 2014

Addi on Deduc on Balance as at   

31st March, 2015

a) General Reserve  28,763,318  –    –    28,763,318 

b) Surplus in the Statement of ProÞt and Loss  (1,851,419,829)  (3,861,191)  –    (1,855,281,020)

 (1,822,656,511)  (3,861,191)  –    (1,826,517,702)

Note:    

General Reserve is primarily created to comply with the requirements of Sec on 123(1b) of the Companies Act, 

2013. This is a free reserve and can be u lised for any general purpose like for issue of bonus shares, payment of 

dividend, buy back of shares etc.

NOTE : 4 Long Term Borrowings

PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Debentures

Secured

i)     1,000,000 18% Redeemable Non-Conver ble

Debentures of Rs.100/- each privately placed with 

IDBI.

 100,000,000  100,000,000 

Less : Not disbursed by IDBI  10,000,000  90,000,000  10,000,000 

 90,000,000  90,000,000 

Less : Overdue Por on of NCD (Refer Note No-9) – –

Less : Current maturity of NCD (Refer Note No-9)  15,031,577  74,968,423 –    90,000,000 

ii)    350,000 19% Redeemable Non-Conver ble

 Debenture of Rs. 100/- each privately placed

 with NIA.

 2,145,658  2,145,658 

iii)   100,000 19% Redeemable Non-Conver ble

Debentures of Rs. 100/- each privately placed 

with OIC.

 8,988,957  8,988,957 

iv)   100,000 20% Redeemable Non-Conver ble

Debentures of Rs. 100/- each privately placed

with NIA.

 10,546,481  10,546,481 

v)    374,030 14%   Redeemable Debentures of 

Rs. 30/- each (Non-Conver ble Por on)

 11,214,878  11,214,878 

vi)   249,375 14% Redeemable Debentures of

Rs. 20/- each. (Non-Conver ble Por on)

 4,987,500  4,987,500 

vii)  10,300 14% Redeemable Debentures of

Rs. 10/- each. (Non-Conver ble Por on)

 103,000  103,000 

 16,305,378  16,305,378 

Less : Allotment Money in arrear  87,360  87,360 

Less : Unpaid Matured Debenture-Refer Note 

No-9(d)

Transfer to Investor Protec on Fund  15,206,388  15,206,388 

Other Overdue Debenture  1,011,630  –     1,011,630  –   

 96,649,519  111,681,096 

(Amount in Rs.)
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NOTE : 4 Long Term Borrowings

PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

b) Term Loan :

i)    From Banks / Financial Ins tu ons

       Secured :

       ARCIL  504,281,568  504,281,568 

       IDBI  99,000,000  99,000,000 

       IDBI (ACS)  43,230,081  43,680,081 

 646,511,649  646,961,649 

Less : Overdue Por on of Long Term Debt  253,257,154  109,268,688 

Less : Current maturity of Long Term Debt 

(Refer Note -9(a)  171,472,927  221,781,568  144,538,466  393,154,495 

ii)  Other Par es

      Unsecured :

      Body Corporates  44,866,759  1,125,000 

      SICOM  4,757,756  4,757,756 

        Sale Tax Loan (Under Sales Tax Deferral Scheme)  26,906,419  28,906,419 

 76,530,934  34,789,175 

Less : Overdue Por on of Long Term Debt  31,664,175  26,931,340 

Less : Current maturi es of Long Term Debts (Refer 

note no 9 (a) –  44,866,759  6,732,835  1,125,000 

 266,648,327  394,279,495 

c) Loans and Advances from Related Par es :

    Unsecured :  –    –    –   

        Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan  1,675,000  1,675,000 

d) Long Term Maturi es of Finance Lease. (CAR)

    Secured :

    HDFC Bank Ltd.  2,569,986  2,205,991 

    Tata Motors Finance Ltd. –  585 

    Family Credit Ltd. –  25,204 

 2,569,986  2,231,780 

Less Current maturi es of Þnance lease 

(Refer Note-9(b)  1,190,616  1,379,370  1,187,222  1,044,558 

 1,379,370  1,044,558 

Total  366,352,216  508,680,149 

NOTES :

Terms of Redemp on/Repayment :

a) Debentures      

 i) In respect of Note-4(a)(i) above, persuant to the BIFR Order dated 10th June, 2010 and subsequent rescheduling 

made by the IDBI repayment will start from the year 2013-14 (rescheduled as 2015-16) and end on 2016-17.

 ii) In respect of Note-4(a) (ii) to (iv) above, the repayment will be made a er all the secured creditors agreeing the 

restructuring scheme persuant to the BIFR Order dated 10th June, 2010 have been fully paid o .

 iii) In respect of Note-4(a)(v) to (vii) above, repayable at par on the expiry of 7th, 8th and 9th years from the date of 

allotment i.e 4th February, 1992      

b) Term Loans :      

 i) ARCIL:During the year 2013-14, ARCIL has restructured the schedule of repayments of their outstanding Term 
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Loan by segrega ng total outstanding as under e ec ve from October,2013:

  Principal Rs. 35.21 Crores

  Interest Rs. 10.99 Crores

  Accordingly provision has been made for the elements of interest for the year Rs.77,285,294/-, included under 

Finance Cost. Out of this, Rs.4,685,294/- has been paid during the year and the balance amount of Rs.72,600,000/- 

is included under Interest Accrued and Due.

  As per the terms of Original Sanc on le er of ARCIL, no re-alignment of the principal amount would be considerd 

ll repayment of all the instalments. Hence no adjustment has been made towards principal amount of term 

loan from ARCIL. 

  However, the Company has made an applica on on 9th April, 2015  with the ARCIL for further restructuring of 

the loan including interest thereon and the ma er is under their considera on.

 ii) IDBI : Persuant to the BIFR Order dated 10th June, 2010 repayment will start from the Þnancial year 2013-14 and 

end on 2016-17.

  The Company has submi ed a modiÞed DRS Scheme to the Hon'ble Board of BIFR regarding its total exposer to 

IDBI for Rs.232,230,081/- (including Redeemable Non Converteble Debentures of Rs. 90,000,000) (Previous Year 

Rs.232,680,081), the approval of which from the BIFR is s ll awaited. However, the said Scheme has received the 

concent of the other major lender, ARCIL.

  In view of above modiÞed DRS Scheme, awai ng  approval, as also the Company becoming a Non Perfominge 

Asset in the books of IDBI, no provision for the year for Interest on Debenture (including penal interest) 

Rs.12,334,153/- and Inerest on Term Loan (including penal interest) Rs.20,529,769/- has been made in this 

Þnancial statement.

 iii) Unsecured loans rela ng to promoters and body corporates are repayable a er the repayment of all se led 

dues of secured credtors are made persuant to the Rehabilita on Scheme sanc oned by BIFR vides its Order 

dated 10th June, 2010 and also no interest is payble on the above (except Loan taken from Bodies Corporate 

during the year for Rs.40,500,000/-) and so no provision for interest has been made except on Rs.40,500,000/-.

 iv) Loans from SICOM & Sale Tax Loan (Under Sales Tax Deferral Scheme) are repayable over a period of Þve years 

a er cuto  date (31.03.2009) in equal annual instalments persuant to the Rehabilita on Scheme sanc oned by 

BIFR vides its Order dated 10th June, 2010.As per the above order no interest is payable on there loan and hence 

No Provisions is required to be made for the same.

c) Finance Lease :

 In respect of Note-4(d) above, repayable in monthly instalments from June, 2012 to July, 2018 for respec ve cars 

covered under above lease.

 Nature of Security :

 a) Debentures

  i) The aforesaid debentures have been secured by a First mortgage and charge, ranking pari passu, by 

execu on of Debenture Trust Deed on certain immovable and movable proper es of the Company. They 

are also secured by a second mortgage and charge on the immovable and movable assets of the Company at 

U arpara and  Nasik (save and except book debts) both present and future but excluding assets purchased 

/ to be purchased under Deferred Payment Scheme,Asset Credit Scheme and equipments purchased/to 

be purchased against Rupee and Foreign Currency Loans granted / to be granted by Financial Ins tu on 

subject, however, to prior charges created /to be created in favour of the Company'sbankers on stocks and  

receivables for securing borrowings for working capital requirements.

 b) Term Loans :

  i) Term Loans from Financial Ins tu ons and Banks, except term loan from IDBI (ACS) of Rs.43,230,081/- 

(Previous Year Rs. 43,680,081/-) as stated herein a er, are secured/to be secured by pari passu Þrst charge by 

deposit of tle deeds of all the immovable and movable proper es,both  present and future subject,however 

to prior charges to created/to be created in favour of the Company's bankers on stocks and receivables for 

securing borrowings for working capital requirements.

  ii) Term Loan from IDBI (ACS) of Rs. 43,230,081/- (Previous Year Rs.43,680,081/-) under various Schemes of the 

Financial Ins tu on are  secured  by exclusive charge on Fixed Assets purchased under relevant schemes.

 c) Finance Lease :

  In respect of Note-4(d) above the aforesaid leases are secured by the hypothica on of the cars. 
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Period and amount in con nuing default:

Nature of Loans As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Amount of 

Default (Rs.)

Due Since

(Rs.)

Amount of 

Default (Rs.)

Due Since

(Rs.)

i) Secured-Term Loan

Assets Restrucing Company (India) Limited (ARCIL)  1,600,000 Oct'2013  1,600,000 Oct'2013

Do  1,700,000 Nov'2013  1,700,000 Nov'2013

Do  1,700,000 Dec'2013  1,700,000 Dec'2013

Do  1,700,000 Jan '2014  1,700,000 Jan '2014

Do  1,700,000 Feb'2014  1,700,000 Feb'2014

Do  81,800,000 Mar'2014  81,800,000 Mar'2014

Do  6,100,000 Apl'2014

Do  6,200,000 May'2014

Do  6,300,000 Jun'2014

Do  6,400,000 Jul'2014

Do  6,600,000 Aug'2014

Do  6,700,000 Sept'2014

Do  6,800,000 Oct'2014

Do  6,900,000 Nov'2014

Do  7,000,000 Dec'2014

Do  7,100,000 Jan '2015

Do  7,200,000 Feb'2015

Do  7,400,000 Mar'2015

Total  170,900,000  90,200,000

Industrial Development Bank of India-ACS  4,226,296 Sept'2013  4,676,296 Sept'2013

Do  6,242,042 Oct'2013  6,242,042 Oct'2013

Do  6,242,042 Nov'2013  6,242,042 Nov'2013

Do  1,908,308 Dec'2013  1,908,308 Dec'2013

Do  1,318,046 May'2014

Do  6,242,042 Jun'2014

Do  6,242,042 Jul'2014

Do  6,242,042 Aug'2014

Do  6,242,042 Sept'2014

Do  6,242,042 Oct'2014

Do  6,242,042 Nov'2014

Do  6,242,042 Dec'2014

Do  6,242,042 Jan '2015

Do  6,242,042 Feb'2015

Do  6,242,042 Mar'2015

Total  82,357,154  19,068,688 

ii) Unsecured Term Loan**

SICOM  951,551 Mar'2010  951,551 Mar'2010

Do  951,551 Mar'2011  951,551 Mar'2011

Do  951,551 Mar'2012  951,551 Mar'2012

Do  951,551 Mar'2013  951,551 Mar'2013

Do  951,551 Mar'2014

Total  4,757,755  3,806,204 
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Sale Tax Loan (Under Sales Tax Deferral Scheme)  5,781,284 Mar'2010  5,781,284 Mar'2010

Do  5,781,284 Mar'2011  5,781,284 Mar'2011

Do  5,781,284 Mar'2012  5,781,284 Mar'2012

Do  5,781,284 Mar'2013  5,781,284 Mar'2013

Do  3,781,284 Mar'2014

Total  26,906,420  23,125,136 

NOTE : 5 Deferred Tax Liabili es (Net)

PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Deferred Tax Liabili es

Accumulated Deprecia on  32,443,126  42,710,309 

Deferred Tax Assets

Expenses allowable for tax purposes when paid  32,443,126  42,710,309 

Deferred Tax Liability (Net) recognized in books – –

Note : Applying the principal of Accoun ng Standard-22, 'Accoun ng for Tax on Income', Deferred tax Assets have been recognized only to the 

extent of Deferred Tax Liability.

NOTE : 6 Other Long Term Liabili es

Other Payables :

Accrued Expense  35,632,213  35,728,642 

Sales Tax in connec on Leased Assets sales  4,343,236  3,812,500 

Finance Lease Rent (Including Interest)  15,555,325  15,529,479 

Less : Overdue Finance Lease Rent (Refer Note-9)  8,362,624  5,973,672 

Less : Current Maturi es of Finance Lease Rent : 

Interest (Refer Note-9) 2,397,567  4,795,134  2,388,952  7,166,855 
 44,770,584  46,707,997 

Total  44,770,584  46,707,997 

NOTES :     

Terms of Repayment :

Finance Lease Rent in respect of Equipment Lease Scheme from IDBI is repayble for principal and interest amount 

commencing from 2006-07 to 2013-14 and from 2013-14 to 2017-18 respec vely.     

 

Nature of Security :

Equipment Lease Scheme from IDBI of Rs. 15,555,325/- (Previous Year Rs.15,529,479/-)  is secured  by exclusive charge on 

Fixed Assets purchased under relevant scheme.

NOTE : 7 Long Term Provisions

PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Provision for Employees BeneÞts  25,631,381 

Gratuity  33,367,383  12,613,809  38,245,190 

Leave Encashment Refer note-39  16,858,607  50,225,990 

b) Others

Debenture Premium  1,375,000  1,375,000 

Provision for Con ngencies  350,000  1,725,000  350,000  1,725,000 

Total  51,950,990  39,970,190 
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NOTE : 8 Trade Payable

PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

Total Outstanding Dues of Micro and Small 

Enterprises

 2,060,221  1,523,412 

Total Outstanding Dues of Other than Micro 

and Small Enterprises

 

102,607,342 

 77,448,481 

 

104,667,563 

 78,971,893 

 Note :

i) Amount dues to suppliers, are subject to cnÞrma on of the 

par es.
ii) The Company has amounts due to suppliers under the 

Micro,Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 

(MSMED Act ) as at 31st March, 2015 as under:
The Principal amount and Interest due theeon remaining unpaid 

to any supplier as at the end of the year.

 2,060,221  1,523,412 

The amount of Interest paid in terms of Sec on 16 along with 

the amount of the payment made to the supplier beyond the 

appointed day during the year.

 13,402,148  11,697,141 

The amount of interest due and payble for the period of delay 

payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day 

during the year) but without adding the interest speciÞed under 

this Act.

– –

The amount of Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end 

of the year.

– –

The amount of Interest remaining due and payable even in the 

succeeding years,un l such date when the interest dues as above 

are actualy paid to the small enterprise.

– –

The informa on has given in respect of such vendors to the extent they could be iden Þed as “Micro and Small Enterprise” 

on the basis of informa on available with the Company.

NOTE : 9 Other Current Liabili es

PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Current Maturi es of Long Term Debts  171,472,927  151,271,301 

- Refer Note No-4(b)(i) & (ii)

b) Current Maturi es of Finance Lease 

Obliga ons -Refer Note No-4(d) & 6

 3,588,183  3,576,174 

c) Interest Accrued and Due on Borrowings  1,761,154,657  1,685,328,838 

d) Unpaid Matured Debentures and Interest 

accrued thereon
Other Overdue Debenture -Refer Note 

No-4(a)

 1,011,630  1,011,630 

* Investor Educa on and Protec on Fund

   (Matured Debenture) -Refer Note No-4(a)

 15,206,388  15,206,388 

Interest Accrued and Due  5,920,399  22,138,417  5,920,399  22,138,417 

* The Board for Industrial and Financial 

Reconstruc on, vide its Order dated 10th 

June, 2010, has exempted the Company 

from transferring any amount to the 

Investor Educa on and Protec on Fund.
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PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

e) Other Payables

Overdue Por on of Long Term Debt (Refer 

Note No-4(b) above)

 284,921,329  136,200,028 

Overdue Lease Finance Rent

(Refer Note No-6)

 8,362,624  5,973,672 

Overdue Por on of NCD

(Refer Note No-4(a)(i)

 -    -   

Current Maturity of NCD

(Refer Note No-4(a)(i)

 15,031,577  -   

Advance from Customers & Others  4,483,410  5,598,435 

Statutory Liabili es  4,885,330  5,047,418 

Salary Wages & Bonus  25,659,498  25,232,565 

Others  12,727,674  356,071,443  12,673,216  190,725,334 

Total  2,314,425,627  2,053,040,063 

NOTE : 10 Short Term Provisions

PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

 a) Provision for Employees BeneÞts

Unpaid Gratuity  3,903,527  4,067,740 

Leave Encashment  1,155,532  5,059,059  3,697,614  7,765,354 

Total  5,059,059  7,765,354 
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NOTE : 12 Non-Current Investments

PARTICULARS As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Investment Property      
b) Investments in Equity instruments
     Bodies Corporate:
     Quoted Fully Paid Up.
    i) Anil Special Steel Industries Ltd.  
       111,705 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each.

       (Including 10,155 Equity Shares received as Bonus)

 2,652,450  2,652,450 

  ii) Pamwi Tissues Ltd 
        260,130 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  1,328,427  1,328,427 
 iii)  Sumangala Investment Co.Ltd
         4,200 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each  42,000  42,000 
                4,022,877 4,022,877
      Un-Quoted Fully Paid Up.
      i) Shalimar Impex Ltd 
         1,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  10,000  10,000 
     ii) Satya Sons Services Ltd 
         2,000 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each.  20,000  20,000 
                30,000  30,000 

 4,052,877 4,052,877
c)  Investments in Govt. or Trust Securi es 
     7 Year Na onal Savings Cer Þcate.  13,000  13,000  13,000  13,000 
     (Lodged with Govt. Authori es )

 4,065,877 4,065,877
Less: Provision for diminu on in value of Investments 3,711,149 3,549,176
Total 354,728 516,701

Note : All the above investments are stated at cost. 

Provision for diminu on is made to recognize a decline, 

other than temporary, in the value of long term 

investments, script wise.
Aggregate value of Quoted Investments  4,022,877  4,022,877 

Market value of Quoted Investments 341,728  633,278 

Aggregate value of Un-Quoted Investments  43,000  43,000 

Aggregate Provision for diminu on in value of 

Investments

3,711,149  3,549,176 

NOTE : 13 Long Term Loans and Advances

 Unsecured, Considered Goods: As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Capital Advances 15,847,644  8,655,142 

b)  Security Deposits 20,021,185 18,340,271 

c) Other Loans and Advances

Inter Corporate Deposits 40,617,747 40,617,747 

Taxes & Du es Paid Under Protest  6,191,053  6,391,053 

Advance Income Tax  2,220,834  2,024,784 

Advance against Salary & Wages  5,118,329 54,147,963 90,016,792  4,207,228 53,240,812 80,236,225 

Total 90,016,792 80,236,225 

Note : In respect of Inter Corporate Deposits given to 4 Bodies Corporate Rs. 40,617,747/-, though the amount remained 

outstanding for a long period, no provision has been made as the same is considered good for recovery.
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NOTE : 14 Other Non-Current Assets

As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

a) Others

 Unsecured, Considered Goods :

     Export En tlement  11,118,251  11,118,251 

     Claim Receivable  25,539,340  20,947,473 

Total  36,657,591  32,065,724 

Note : In respect of Claims Receivable for Rs. 2,697,618/- even though the amount is outstanding for a long period, no provision has been made 

as the same is considered good for recovery.

NOTE : 15 Inventories

(Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value, unless stated otherwise)

a)  Raw Materials  82,529,728  68,764,670 

b)  Work in Progress  147,427,642  137,488,016 

c)  Finished Goods  10,378,453  17,084,630 

d)  Stores & Spares  54,199,663  55,038,466 

e) Factory Scrap  22,063  199,791 

Total  294,557,549  278,575,573 

NOTE : 16 Trade Receivables

Unsecured, Considered Goods :

Outstanding for a period exceeding six month  87,088,352  36,371,378 

Other Debts  263,996,943  351,085,295  255,320,865  291,692,243 

Doub ul : 

Outstanding for a period exceeding six month  457,798  762,157 

Less : Provision for doub ul debts  457,798 –  762,157 –

Total  351,085,295  291,692,243 

Note : Trade receivables include Rs.3,147,956/- (Previous year Rs.3,147,956/-) outstanding since a long period from related par es. However, 

no provision against the same has been considered necessary. Refer Note No. 34 rela ng to related par es.   

 

NOTE : 17 Cash and Cash Equivalent

a) Balances with Banks

     In Current Account  7,866,595  11,428,493 

     Fixed Deposit  2,763,719  10,630,314 –  11,428,493 

b) Cash on hand  1,921,099  1,334,252 

c) Other Bank Balance

Deposits under lien with banks

Fixed Deposit (Lodged with Bank as Margin)  

i)   Maturity period more than 3 months but less than 12 months  –    4,607,900 

ii)  Maturity period more than 12 months  3,272,438  3,272,438  5,003,553  9,611,453 

Total  15,823,851  22,374,198
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As at March, 2015 As at March, 2014

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 18 Short Term Loans and Advances

a) Loans and Advances to Related Par es :  16,094,626  16,094,626 

Unsecured, Considered Goods

b) Others :

Unsecured, Considered Goods 

Advance to Suppliers & Others  17,232,626  16,896,399 

CENVAT Receivable  12,963,155  7,579,715 

 Vat receivable  2,578,638   2,306,242 

TDS Receivable –  104,215 

Prepaid Expenses  2,710,107  2,917,754 

Others  6,775,427  42,259,954  5,167,340  34,971,665 

Total  58,354,580  51,066,291 

Note : In view of the long outstanding posi on,no interest income has been accounted for since 2001-2002 in respect of the unsecured Loans 

and Advance to Related Par es. Also no provision has been consirderd necessary for Unsecured Loan and Advances to 2 Related par es Rs. 

16,094,626. Refer to Note No-34 rela ng to Related Par es.

NOTE : 19 Other Current Assets

 Interest Receivable  431,385  593,029 

Total  431,385  593,029 

2014-15 2013-14

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 20 Revenue from opera ons

a) Sale of goods (Gross)

 Wire/Fabric for Pulp, Paper Board Industries  889,089,798 845054048

 Copper & Copper Alloy Wires Including Monel Wires  96,309,824 106481514

 Dandy Roll & Dandy Bracket  34,978,373  20,813,481 

 Others  9,050,432  1,029,428,427  9,624,233  981,973,276 

b) Other Opera ng Income

 Export En tlement  6,289,794  6,740,294 

 Scrap Sale*  2,224,757  8,514,551  1,942,494  8,682,788 

 Revenue from opera ons (Gross)  1,037,942,978  990,656,064 

 Less : Excise duty and cess on sale of goods  93,628,824  84,359,565 

 Revenue from opera ons (net)  944,314,154  906,296,499 

 * Net of Excise Duty. 
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2014-15 2013-14

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 21 Other Income

a) Interest Income (Tax Deducted at Sources Rs. 196,050

Previous year Rs. 124,328/-)

1,784,137 1,268,015

b)  Net Gain on Sale of Investment. – 2,263,260

c)  Other Non-Opera ng Income (Net) :

i)    Net gain on foreign currency transac ons  2,928,555  9,044,619 

ii)   Unspent liabili es/balances wri en back  3,585,871  3,022,991 

iii)  Miscellaneous Income  3,942,138  10,456,564  1,554,072  13,621,682 

Total  12,240,700  17,152,957 

NOTE : 22 Cost of Materials Consumed

Raw Materials Consumed

Opening Stock  68,764,670  66,974,117 

Add : Purchase  292,766,816  361,531,486  327,081,095  394,055,212 

Less : Closing Stock  82,529,727  68,764,670 

Total  279,001,759  325,290,542 

NOTE : 23 Change in Inventories

Closing Stock :

Finished Goods  10,378,453  17,084,630 

Work in Progress :  147,427,642  137,488,016 

Stock in Trade – –

Scrap  22,063  157,828,158  199,791  154,772,437 

 Less: Opening Stock : 

Finished Goods  17,084,630  14,743,893 

Work in Progress :  137,488,016  127,653,659 

Stock in Trade – –

 Scrap  199,791  154,772,437  70,344  142,467,896 

Increase / ( Decrease ) in Stock  3,055,721  12,304,541 

NOTE : 24 Employees BeneÞts Expense

Salaries and Wages   175,385,205  158,661,764 

Contribu on to Providend Fund and Other Fund  11,270,720  10,268,576 

Sta  welfare Expense  14,304,400  13,967,121 

Total  200,960,324  182,897,460 

 Note: Salaries and Wages include Rs.672,563/- (Previous Year Rs.365,685/-) being expenses incurred on Research & Development.
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2014-15 2013-14

Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 25 Finance Cost

a)  Interest Expense  86,203,922  68,655,813 

Total  86,203,922  68,655,813 

NOTE : 26 Other Expenses

Stores & Spare parts consump on  62,753,063  63,891,850 

Rent  6,076,840  4,300,880 

Rates & Taxses  694,309  931,416 

Insurance  5,947,241  4,281,074 

Power & Fuel  39,089,630  33,680,280 

Repairs & Maintanance  60,482,664  58,176,424 

Travelling & Conveyance  31,631,006  34,497,713 

Directors' Fees  421,500  472,500 

Payments to Auditors  355,000  315,000 

Brokarage & Commission  17,049,819  20,853,257 

Leagal and Professional Expenses  24,109,673  23,483,362 

Freight & Forwarding  7,126,231  5,906,376 

Se lement Compensa on to Customers  9,913,127  9,123,168 

Loss on Sale of Tangible Assets  263,436  1,679,252 

Loss on Discarded of Tangible Assets  34,558  –   

Debenture Trustee Remunera on  106,868  292,600 

Doub ul Debt Wri en O  2,662,555  2,294,810 

Sundry Balances Wri en O   347,767  16,806 

Provision for Doub ul Debt  –    457,798 

Provision for Impairment Loss  –    –   

Preliminary Expenses Wri en O  –    –   

Prior Period Expenses  1,745,092  3,663,671 

Net Loss on Foreign Currency Exchange  40,794  –   

Miscellaneous Expenses  49,083,868  46,628,168 

 319,935,040  314,946,405 

NOTE : 27 Income from Excep onal Items

a) Forfeited amount of Interest on Deposit from a party  218,099  29,511,183 

b) Waiver of Electricity Duty  –    17,025,343 

 218,099  46,536,526 

Note :

a) During the year Rs. 10,100,000/- had been received from a party as deposit for disposal of Company's Land at Nasik, through Stae Bank 

of India. However the BIFR directed to stop con nuing the nego ated sale and the amount of deposit has been refunded to the party. 

The Company earned interest on such deposits from State Bank of India Rs. 218,099/- for the period the amount of deposit remained 

with them.
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b) In terms of the BIFR Order dated 10th June, 2010 the Company is en tled for waiver of Electricity Duty under the provision of the West 

Bengal Electrcity Duty Act, 1935 for a period of 5 years with e ect from 1st April, 2009. Accordingly, claim had been ini ated with the 

Directorate of Electricity Duty for Rs. 17,025,343/- partaining to the period from 1st April, 2009 to 31st March, 2014 on the basis of 

Eligibility Cer Þcate dated 17th January, 2014 issued by the Industrial Reconstruc on Department, Government of West Bengal. The Þnal 

Waiver Cer Þcate from the Directorate of Electricity Duty, Govt. of West Bengal, is awaited pending veriÞca on of documents rela ng to 

the amount of claim.

ii) Expenditure for Extraordinary Items 6,865,511 –

Deprecia on  –   –

6,865,511 –

Note :

In absence of Retained Earning Propor onate part deprecia on pertaining to assets having no future es mated life has 

been disclosed under Extraoridary Item being considered as a one- me charge relevant to the yar of adop on of Schedule-

II of the Companies Act, 2013 (also Refer to Note No. 30)

2014-15 2013-14

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 28 Other Disclosures

Con ngent Liabili es and Commitments

(To the extent not provided for)

 i) Con ngent Liabili es

a)  Claim against the company not acknowledged as debt  9,008,000  9,008,000 

b)  Guarantees  6,006,157  7,692,844 

c)  Other money for which the company is con ngently liable

 Sale Tax Demands  215,077,937  212,784,725 

Excise Demands  195,704,512  193,516,528 

Municipal Tax Demands  1,857,305  1,857,305 

Non fulÞllment of Export Obliga on under DEEC Scheme  57,324,691  57,324,691 

Non fulÞllment of Export Obliga on under ISIL Scheme –  469,964,445 –  465,483,249 

Total  484,978,602  482,184,093 

ii) Commitments   

a)  Es mated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on Capital  

      Account and not provided for (Net of Advance)

37,354,109 73,900,107

b)  Uncalled liability on shares and other investments partly paid  –    –   

c)  Other Commitments  –    –   

Total 37,354,109 73,900,107

Note : 

1 The above con ngent liability in respect of Sale Tax includes an amount of Rs.179166738/- (Previous Year Rs.179166738/-) being tax 

demand by the Sale Tax Authori es on sale of synthe c fabric manufactured by the Company for the year 1993-94, 1995-96  to 2001-02, 

2003-04 and 2004-05 consequent upon the treatment of such fabric as a taxable item which the Company claims to be non-taxable. The 

Company's appeal in respect of the aforesaid demand is pending before various authori es. In respect of demand for disputed Sales Tax 

in Synthe c of Rs.78061149/- for the year 1993-94,1995-96,1997-98,1999-2000 and 2003-04,orders in favour of the Company have been 

issued by W.B.Commercial Taxes Appellate and Revision Board and Sr.Joint Commissioner as well as Hon'ble High Court of Kolkata. The 

Sales Tax department is yet to issue revised oeders and has not yet  Þled review pe on before the Hon'ble Appex Court.

Proceeding have also been ini ated by the Sales Tax authori es to re-open assesment in respect of certain other years, though no demand 

has been raised by the Department in respect of above years. The company is contes ng the same and has been legally adviced that the 

above is not taxable

As against above demands the Company has deposited Rs.3,012,293/- under protest.
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2) The above Con ngent Liabili es for Excise Demands includes demands made by Central Excise Authori es from me to me on some 

alleged intermediate product ( Grey Fabric ) of Synthe c Wire Cloth for the Þnancial years 1987-88 to 2010-11.The Company is contes ng 

the same beforeCESTAT and Supreme Court simulteneoysly and has been legally advised that no duty is payable on the same intermediate 

product.

As against above demands the Company has deposited Rs.2,250,000/- under protest.

3) The Company has deposited Rs. 928,760/- under protest against the demands for Municipal Tax.

4) As against the demands for non-fulÞlment of Export Obliga on under DEEC Scheme, Rs.11,118,251/- has been deposited under protest 

and disclosed under Export En tlements as Other Non-Current Assets.

5) The Con ngent Liabili es represen ng dues to various Government Authori es as stated in (c) above, have been arrived at a er 

considering the reliefs granted by BIFR vides its Order dated 10.06.2010.

6) A sum amoun ng to Rs.15,847,644/-has been paid as advance in respect of above contracts remaining to be executed on Capital Account 

and not provided for.

2014-15 2013-14

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

NOTE : 29 Addi onal Informa on

1. a) Deprecia on and Amor za on Expense

Tangible Assets  61,323,363  62,386,079 

Intangible Assets  5,424,377  4,443,724 

Total  66,747,740  66,829,803 

b) Items of Income or Expenditure which exceeds 1% 

of the revenue from opera ons or Rs. 1,00,000/- 

which ever is higher.

i)  Income :

Sundry Balances Wri en Back  135,236 –

Miscelleneous Income

Miscelleneous Receipts  1,557,978  442,902 

Repair & Servicing (Net)  253,700  1,111,170 

Previous Year Adjustment  2,130,460  3,942,138  –    1,554,072 

Doub ul Debt Wri en Back  3,449,073  –   

Sale Tax Refund for Earlier Years  –    –   

ProÞt on sales of tangible assets  –    –   

Total  7,391,211  1,554,072 

b ) Payments to Auditors

 Audit Fees  175,000  175,000 

Taxa on Ma er  100,000  100,000 

Company Law Ma ers  –    –   

Other Services  80,000  40,000 

Reimbursement of Expenses  –    –   

Total  355,000  315,000 
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2014-15 2013-14

Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

c) Prior Period Items

Contribu on to Gratuity Fund  –    540,698 

Legal & Professional Fees  653,078  1,993,137 

Claims Se led  –    –   

Vehicle Expenses  –    12,452 

Car Hire Charges  –    162,544 

Membership Fees  216,000  162,638 

Rates & Taxes  200,144  466,992 

Travelling expense  48,415 

Repairs & Maintanance  100,000 

DEPB License  –    –   

Others  527,455  325,210 

Total  1,745,092  3,663,671 

2014-15 2013-14

Qty ( Kg ) Value Qty ( Kg ) Value

2. a) Raw Material Consump on 

i )   Copper & Copper Alloy Wire  137,224  59,236,143  150,066  66,280,678 

ii)   Trivera Wire      191,644  144,578,726  181,959  169,108,259 

iii)  Stainless Steel Wire  145,962  58,726,251  160,328  65,933,903 

iv)  Strips  7,901  4,811,599  8,244  5,276,874 

v)   Non-Ferrous  2,677  1,773,634  13,116  11,143,402 

vi)  Others  7,577  9,875,405  8,486  7,547,427 

Total  492,985  279,001,759  522,199  325,290,542 

3. Work In Progress 

 i) Wire  24,321,578  9,668,964 

 ii) Brass  6,836,353  6,095,066 

iii) Cloth  24,291,482  40,918,543 

iv) Synthe c cloth Sqm  88,579,010  76,339,065 

v) Dandy Bracket  1,922,522  2,095,296 

vi) Others  1,476,697  2,371,082 

Total  147,427,642  137,488,016 

4. a) The aggregate, if material, of any amounts set aside 

to provisions made for mee ng speciÞc liabili es, 

containgencies or commitments.

Liabili es – –

Con ngencies  350,000  350,000 

Commitments –  -   

Total  350,000  350,000 

Note: The above con ngencies Rs.350,000/- (Previous Year Rs.350,000/-) is dependent upon Court decision/out of Court Se lement /disposal 

of appeals, etc.
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2014-15 2013-14

Qty ( Kg ) Value Qty ( Kg ) Value

5. a) Value of imports calculated on C.I.F basis by the company 

during the Þnancial year in respect of - 

I.   Raw Materials  206,547,818  250,832,333 

II.  Components and Spare Parts  18,624,240  24,402,877 

III. Capital Goods  39,302,064  21,911,196 

b)  Expenditure in Foreign Currency during the Þnancial year:

 I.   Travelling  2,749,861  5,946,529 

II.   Commission to Selling Agent  18,349,614  19,290,166 

III.  Others  373,629 –

c) Total value of Imported and Indigenous materials consumed:

 I.  Raw Material

     Imported  218,115,632  271,439,978 

     Indigenous  60,886,127  53,850,564 

     Total  279,001,759  325,290,542 

II. Spare Parts and Components

    Imported  5,998,904  5,710,311 

    Indigenous  56,754,159  58,181,539 

    Total  62,753,063  63,891,850 

d)  Earnings in Foreign Exchange :

 I.    Export of Goods calculated on F.O.B. Basis  209,340,777  244,490,451 

30 Upto 31st March, 2014 the Compny, for the purpose of charging Deprecia on on Tangible Fixed Assets, had been calcula ng the same at 

the rates prescribed in the erstwhile Schedule XIV of the Companies Act, 1956. Consequent upon the introduc on of the Companies Act, 

2013 with e ect from 1st April, 2014 the Company has changed the method of calcula ng deprecia on based on the es mated useful life 

of each Asset as speciÞed in Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly deprecia on for the year amunted to Rs.70,236,604/-, 

(inclusive of Rs.34,888,864/- rela ng to Discon nued Opera on), which includes Rs.9,207,832/- (inclusive of Rs.2,342,321/- rela ng to 

Discon nued Opera on) pertaining to assets having no future es mated useful life. As per Schedule II, the amount of Rs.9,207,832/- 

should have been adjusted against Retained Earnings. In absence  of any posi ve Retained Earnings of the Company, this amount has been 

disclosed as Extraordinery Item -  Rs.6,865,511/- under Con nuing Opera on and Rs. 2,342,321/- under Discon nued Opera on. Had 

the deprecia on been calculated as per erstwhile Schedule XIV, deprecia on for the year would have been Rs. 71,971,668/- (including 

Rs. 1,789,692/-  rela ng to Discon nued Opera on). This change in the basis of calcula ng deprecia on has resulted in. Understatement 

of loss for the year by Rs. 1,735,064/-, understatement of nage ve balance under Reserves & Surplus as also overstatement of Net Block 

of Tangible Fixed Assets as on 31st March, 2015 by like amount as compared to previous year.

31 Amounts due in respect of Trade Receivable,Loans & Advance given (Non Current and Current Assets) which are considered good and 

amounts due to par es (under Non Current Liabili es and Trade Payable) are subject to conÞrma on from the respec ve par es.

32 Debenture Redemp om Reserve has not been created in view of brought forward loss.

33 No provision for taxa on has been made in the accounts in view of carry forward loss. Also Minimum Alternate Tax ( MAT ) provision has 

not been made since this is not applicable, the Company being a Sick Industrial Company.

34 Related Party Disclosures under Accoun ng Standared-18 :

 (a)  Key Management Personnel :   

  Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan   

 (b)  Rela ves of Key Management Personnel :   

  Mr. Vedant Khaitan (Son of Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan)   

 (c)  Enterprises over which key management personnel and their rela ves are able to exercise signiÞcant inßuence :   

 Shalimar Industries Limited    

  Anil Special Steel Industries Ltd   

 Details of transac ons between the Company and related par es and the status of outstanding balances as on 31st March, 2015 :
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Transac ons with Related Par es

 Enterprises over which 

signiÞcant  Inßuence 

exists

 Key Management

 Personnel 

 Rela ves to Key 

 Management Personnel  Total 

 2014-15  2013-14  2014-15  2013-14  2014-15  2013-14  2014-15  2013-14 

Remunera on :

Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan  -    -    4,558,452  3,708,875  -    -    4,558,452  3,708,875 

Salary & Other Perquisites

Mr. Vedant Khaitan  927,380  679,687  927,380  679,687 

Balance Outstanding :  -   

Inter Corporate Deposit receivable  -   

Anil Special Steel Industries Ltd. 15,762,426 15,762,426  -    -    -    -   15,762,426 15,762,426 

Shalimar Industries Limited  332,200  332,200  -    -    -    -    332,200  332,200 

Accounts Receivable :  -    -   

Anil Special Steel Industries Ltd.  2,702,505  2,702,505  -    -    -    -    2,702,505  2,702,505 

Shalimar Industries Limited  445,451  445,451  -    -    -    -    445,451  445,451 

Accounts Payables :

Mr. Sunil Kumar Khaitan  -    -    2,916,171  2,176,171  -    -    2,916,171  2,176,171 

Mr. Vedant Khaitan  -    -    -    -    49,598  59,580  49,598  59,580 

 Note : a) No amount has been wri en back during the year in respect of due to related par es.  

  b) No amount has been wri en o  during the year in respect of due from related par es.  

  c) No provision for doub ul debts in respect of dues from related par es has been made.   

35 The Financial Statements of the Company have been prepared on a going concern basis as the accumulated losses of the Company 

exeeded its net worth and the Company was declared as a Sick Industrial Company as per the Sick Industrial Companies (Special Provision) 

Act, 1985 by the Board of Industrial and Financial Reconstruc on ( BIFR ) vide its Order dated 30.01.2006. The said Board has accorded its 

approval as conveyed vide its Order dated 10.06.2010 to the Dra  Rehabilita on Scheme ( DRS ) submited by the Company and which was 

received the Company on 24.06.2010. The e ect of the above has been duly given in the Þnancial statement. 

36 Discon nued Opera on :      

 a)  The Company has discon nued its Nasik Unit from 2nd July 2003 onwards.     

 The results of the discon nued business during the year where as under;

For the year ended 

31st Mach, 2015

For the year ended 

31st Mach, 2014

` ` ` `

Expenses :

Employees BeneÞts  1,574,638  1,470,642 

Deprecia on and Amor za on  3,488,864  1,561,317 

Less : Retained Depricia on  2,342,321  1,146,543  -    1,561,317 

Other Expenses  5,777,577  6,037,900 

Total Expenses  8,498,758  9,069,859 

Loss before tax from ordinary ac vi es  (8,498,758)  (9,069,859)

Add : Gain on disposal of assets / Excess provision of deprecia on 

of assets wri en back / Se lement of liabili es a ributable to 

Discon nuing  opera on.

 -    181,469

Extraordernery Items  2,342,321  -   

ProÞt / ( Loss ) from discon nuing opera ons a er tax (10,841,079)  (8,888,390)
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For the year ended 

31st Mach, 2015

For the year ended 

31st Mach, 2014

` ` ` `

Carrying amount of the total assets rela ng to discon nuing 

opera ons to be disposed o

 46,222,010 49,710,874 

Carrying amount of the total liabili es rela ng to discon nuing 

opera ons to be se led

 82,927,255 84,021,972 

Net cash ßow a ributable to the discon nued opera on

Cash inßows / (ou low) from opera ng ac vi es –  6,732,866 

Cash inßows / (ou low) from inves ng ac vi es – –

Cash inßows / (ou low) from Þnancing ac vi es –  (6,732,835)

 b) As per the demarger order passed by the Hon'ble Calcu a High Court long back the Company is liable to pay stamp duty under 

Bombay Stamp Act, 1958 for registra on of its immovable proper es located in Maharastra and accordingly has made es mated 

provision of Rs. 210.32 lakhs on accout of stamp duty. Pursuant to  the said order, Rs.210.32 lakhs is receivable from Jhagadia Copper 

Ltd ( Formerly SWIL Ltd ) which will be accounted for as and when received.Also the BIFR,vide Order dated 10th June,2010, directed 

"to consider to exempt Stamp Duty on transfer/sale of surplus land."

 c) The above opera on has been disclosed under "Strip & Wires" business segment.

37 Segment Repor ng Disclosures under Accoun ng Standard-17 :

 Based on the guiding principles given in Accoun ng Standard 17 'Segment Repor ng' ,the Company's primary business segments are (a) 

Paper Mill Product and (b) Strip & Wire.

 Segment wise Revenue, Results and Capital Employed for the year ended 31st March, 2015 :

2014-15 2013-14

A. Primary Segment Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

A.1. Segment Revenue (Gross Sales / Income from each segment)

(a) Paper Mill Products

i)  External Revenue  949,989,368  895,617,673 

ii) Inter segment Revenue –  949,989,368  -    895,617,673 

(b) Strip & Wire

i)  External Revenue  100,194,310  109,729,353 

ii) Inter segment Revenue –  100,194,310 –  109,729,353 

(c) Others – –

 1,050,183,678  1,005,347,026 

A.2. Segment Results [(ProÞt / (Loss) before Tax and interest]

(a) Paper Mill Products  112,769,230  63,573,936 

(b) Strip & Wire  (23,779,086)  (26,672,539)

(c) Others  (6,647,413)  46,536,526 

Total  82,342,731  83,437,923 

Less : Interest Cost  (86,203,922)  (68,655,813)

Add : Excep onal Items : Write back (Net) on account of BIFR scheme – –

Total ProÞt / (Loss) before Tax  (3,861,191)  14,782,110 

As at 31st March, 2015 As at 31st March, 2014

Assets Liabili es Assets Liabili es

A.3. Net Segment Assets

(Segment Assets less Segment Liabili es)

(a) Paper Mill Products  1,223,632,024  192,062,859  1,068,307,452  160,677,482 

(b) Strip & Wire  119,611,272  96,397,204  117,539,437  94,713,448 

(c) Unallocable liabili es less unallocable assets.  86,110,154  27,225,711  89,200,172  27,225,711 

 1,429,353,450  315,685,774  1,275,047,061  282,616,641 
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2014-15 2013-14

A. Primary Segment Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

A.4. Capital expenditure including capital work-in-progress and deprecia on Capital

Expenditure

Deprecia on Capital

Expenditure

Deprecia on

` ` ` `

(a) Paper Mill Products  131,461,655  64,443,400  96,822,903  63,736,035 

(b) Strip & Wire  -    5,793,204  -    4,655,085 

(c) Others  -    -    -    -   

Total  131,461,655  70,236,604  96,822,903  68,391,120 

B. Secondary Segment Paper Mill 

Products

Strip & Wire Others Total

Geographical distribu on of segment revenues

1. India  694,142,499  79,576,114  –    773,718,613 

 (686,107,430)  (74,749,145)  –    (760,856,575)

2. European Con nent  –    17,810,391  –    17,810,391 

 –    (32,029,383)  –    (32,029,383)

3. African Con nent  7,632,622  –    –    7,632,622 

 (5,327,535)  –    –    (5,327,535)

4. U.S.A.  349,470  34,643  –    384,113 

 (275,580)  (275,580)

5. Other Asian Countries  178,396,794  2,773,162  –    181,169,956 

(203,907,128)  (2,950,825)  –    (206,857,953)

Total  880,521,385  100,194,310  –    980,715,695 

(895,342,093)  (109,729,353)  –    (1,005,347,026)

 Note : a) The Company has disclosed business segment as the primary segment.

  b) Transac ons between segments are for materials which are transferred at cost.

  c) Segment revenue and expense include items directly a ributable to the segment and common costs, appor oned on a 

reasonable basis

   They do not include investment income, interest income from Inter-corporate deposits and loans given, dividend income and 

interest expense.

  d) All Segment assets and liabili es are directly a ributable to the segment.

   Segment assets include all opera ng assets used by the segment and consists principally of net Þxed assets, inventories, 

sundry debtors, loans and advances and opera ng cash and bank balances. Segment liabili es include all opera ng liabili es 

and consist principally of creditors and accrued liabil es. Segment assets and liabili es do not include investments, loans 

given, interest accrued and due/ but not due, share capital, reserves and surplus and loans.

  e) Fixed Assets used in Company's business or liabili es contracted have not been iden Þed to any of the reportable geographical 

segments, as the Þxed assets and services are used interchangably between segments. Accordingly, no disclousure rela ng to 

total segment assets and liabili es are made.    

38 Disclosure in terms of Accoun ng Stanadrd-29 

 (a) Movement for Provision for Liabili es : 

Legal Cases

Par culars Rs.

Balance as at 1st April, 2014 350,000 

Provided During the period  – 

Amount used during the period  – 

Reversed during the period  – 

Balance as at 31st March, 2015 350,000 

Timing of ou low/uncertain es               Ou low on 

se lement/ Crystalliza on
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 (b) The Con ngent Liabili es & Liabili es  are dependent upon Court decision / out of Court Se lement/ Disposal of appeals, etc.

 (c) No reimbursement is expected in the case of Con ngent Liabili es & Liabili es. 

39 Employees BeneÞts under Accoun ng Standard-15 :    

 As per Accoun ng Standard - 15 " Employee BeneÞts", the disclosure of Employee BeneÞts as deÞned in the Accoun ng Standard are as 

follows :

 a)  DeÞned Contribu on Plan :   

  i) Employee beneÞts in the form of Providend Fund, Superannua on Fund, Employee State Insurance Scheme and Labour 

Welfare Fund are considered as deÞned contribu on plan except that Providend Fund in respect of certain employees is 

contributed to a fund set up by the Company which is treated as a DeÞned BeneÞt Plan since the Company has to meet the 

interest shor all.

  ii) The contribu ons to the funds are made in accordance with the relevant statute and are recognized as an expense when 

employees have rendered service en tling them to the contribu ons. The contribu on to DeÞned Contribu on Plan, 

recognized as expense for the year are as under :

  DeÞned Contribu on Plan   

2014-15 2013-14

(Rs.) (Rs.)

Employer's Contribu on to Provident Fund  11,270,720  10,268,576 

Employer's Contribu on to Superannua on Fund – –

Employer's Contribu on to Employee State Insurance Scheme  1,380,073  2,824,265 

Employer's Contribu on to Labour Welfare Fund  13,030  9,070 

 b) DeÞned BeneÞt Plan :

  i) Post employment and other long-term employee beneÞts in the form of gratuity and leave encashment are considered as 

DeÞned BeneÞt Obliga on. The present value of obliga on is determined based on acturial valua on using projected unit 

credit method as at the Balance Sheet date. The amount of deÞned beneÞts recognized in the Balance Sheet represent the 

present value of the obliga on as adjusted for unrecognized past service cost and as reduced by the fair value of plan assets.

  ii) Providend Fund in respect of certain employees is contributed to a fund set up by the Company which is treated as a DeÞned 

BeneÞt Plan since the Company has to meet the interest shor all. There is no interest shor all as at the year end. As advised 

by an independent actuary, it is not prac cal or feasible to actuarially value the liability considering that the rate of interest is 

no Þed by the Government . Accordingly other related disclosures in respect of Providend Fund have not been made.

  iii) Any asset resul ng from this calcula on is limited to the discounted value of any economic beneÞts available in the form of 

refunds from the plan or reduc ons in future contribu ons to the plan. The amount recognized in the ProÞt and Loss Account 

for the year in respect of Employees BeneÞt Schemes based on acturial reports is as follows :   

Gratuity Leave Encashment

Funded Unfunded Funded

Components of Employer Expense : 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

Current Service Cost  3.00  2.51  27.41  23.28  8.19  21.51 

Past Service Cost  –    –    –    –   

Interest Cost  5.82  6.18  30.40  31.17  13.38  12.36 

Expected Return on Plan Asset  (2.98)  (3.15)  (4.06)  (5.94)  –    –   

Actuarial (gain)/loss recognized in the year  (1.84)  5.27  33.30  (4.44)  29.08  26.86 

Expense recognized in statement of ProÞt & Loss Account  4.00  10.81  87.05  44.07  50.65  60.73 
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Gratuity Leave Encashment

Funded Unfunded Funded

Change in Present Value of DeÞned BeneÞt Obliga on : 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

Present Value of DeÞned BeneÞt Obliga on at the 

beginning of the year

 72.69  77.20  366.56  326.20  158.22  122.42 

Interest Cost  5.82  6.18  30.40  31.17  13.38  12.36 

Past Service Cost  –    –    –    –    –    –   

Current Service Cost  3.00  2.51  27.41  23.28  8.19  21.51 

BeneÞts paid  (5.27)  (18.47)  (63.34)  (9.52)  (34.36)  (24.93)

Actuarial (gain)/loss  (1.84)  5.27  32.38  (4.57)  29.08  26.86 

Present Value of Obliga on at the end of the year  74.40  72.69  393.41  366.56  174.51  158.22 

Gratuity Leave Encashment

Funded Unfunded Funded

Change in fair value of Plan Assets during the year ended 

31st March, 2015 :

2014–15 2013–14 2014–15 2013–14 2014–15 2013–14

Plan Assets at the beginning of the year  35.93  48.25  75.01  56.95  –    –   

Expected Return on Plan Assets  2.98  3.15  4.06  5.94  –    –   

Actual Company Contribu on  4.82  3.00  12.00  21.77  34.36  22.63 

BeneÞts Paid  (5.27)  (18.47)  (63.34)  (9.52)  (34.36)  (22.63)

Actuarial (gain)/loss  –    –    (0.92)  (0.13)  –    –   

Plan Assets at the end of the year  38.46  35.93  26.81  75.01  –    –   

Gratuity Leave Encashment

Funded Unfunded Funded

Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet as at 

31st March, 2015 :

2014–15 2013–14 2014–15 2013–14 2014–15 2013–14

Present value of DeÞned BeneÞt Obliga on  74.40  72.69  393.41  366.56  174.51  158.22 

Fair Value on Plan Assets  (38.46)  (35.92)  26.81  75.01  –    –   

Funded Status [Surplus/(DeÞcit)]  –    (366.60)  (291.55)  (174.51)  (158.22)

Net Asset/(Liability) recognized in Balance Sheet  35.94  36.77  (366.60)  (291.55)  (174.51)  (158.22)

Gratuity Leave Encashment

Funded Unfunded Funded

Actuarial Assump ons : 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

Discount Rate (per annum)  –    –   8% 8.25% 8%/7.75% 8.25%/9.25% 

Expected rate of return on Plan Assets (per annum)  –    –    N.A.  N.A.  N.A.  N.A. 

Salary increases  –    –   5% 5% 5%/7% 5%/7%

Re rement / Superannua on age  –    –   58 years 58 years 58 years 58 years

Mortality  –    –   Indian 

Assured 

Lives 

(2006-08)

Ul mate 

Mortality 

Rates.

Indian 

Assured 

Lives 

(2006-08)

Ul mate 

Mortality 

Rates.

Indian 

Assured 

Lives 

(2006-08)

Ul mate 

Mortality 

Rates.

Indian 

Assured 

Lives 

(2006-08)

Ul mate 

Mortality 

Rates.
Gratuity Leave Encashment

Funded Unfunded Funded

Major Category of Plan Assets as a % of the Total Plan 

Assets as at year end:

2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

 –    –   N.A. N.A.  –    –   
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Gratuity Leave Encashment

Funded Unfunded Funded

Experience Adjustments: 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13 13–14 12–13

DeÞned BeneÞt Obliga on  –    –    393.41  366.56  174.51  158.22 

Plan Assets  –    –    26.81  75.01  –    –   

Funded Status  –    –    (366.60)  (291.55)  (174.51)  (158.22)

Experience Gain/(Loss) adjustments on Plan Liabili es  –    –    32.38  (4.57)  29.08  26.86 

Experience Gain/(Loss) adjustments on Plan Assets  –    –    (0.92)  (0.13)  –    –   

Gratuity Leave Encashment

Funded Unfunded Funded

Expected Employer's Contribu on for the next year : 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14 2014-15 2013-14

Expected Employer's Contribu on for the next year  –    –    95.67  91.92  29.28  68.02 

 c)  Basis used to determine the expected Rate of return on Plan Assets :  

  The basis used to determine the expected rate of return on Plan Assets is Deep Discount Interest rate of R.B.I. or average interest 
rate of R.B.I. Long Term Instrument.  

 d)  Other disclosures :   

  i)  The es mates of rate of escala on in salary considered in actuarial valua on, take into account inßa on, seniority, promo on 
and other relevant factors including supply and demand in the employment market. The above informa on is cer Þed by the 
actuary.

  ii)  The Gratuity expenses have been recognized in " Contribu on To Provident & Other Funds" and Leave Encashment  in 
"Salaries/Wages and Bonus" under Note No -24   

  iii) The amount of the present value of obliga ons, fair value of Plan Assets, surplus/deÞcit in the plan and experience adjustment 
arising on plan liabili es and plan assets for the previous three annual periods are not available and therefore, not disclosed.

 Note : Above informa on have been compiled on the basis of Cer Þcates issued by the Actuaries.  

40 Earning Per Shares :

2014-2015 2013-2014

(Rs.) (Rs.)

a)  Net ProÞt/(Loss) a er tax available for equity shareholders  (3,861,191)  14,782,110 

b) Weighted average number of Basic Equity Shares of ` 2/-  each outstanding during the 

year. 

(No. of shares)

 37,605,123  37,605,123 

c) Weighted average number of Diluted Equity Shares of ` 2/- each outstanding during the 

year. 

(No. of shares)

 37,605,123  37,605,123 

d) Basic Earning Per Shares (Rs) a/b  (0.10) 0.39

e) Diluted Earning Per Shares (Rs) a/c  (0.10) 0.39

41 The previous year's Þgures have been reworked, regrouped, rearranged and reclassiÞed wherever necessary and prac cabl. Amounts 

and other disclosures for the preceding year are included as an integral part of the current year Þnancial statements and are to be read in 

rela on to the amounts and other disclosures rela ng to the current year. 
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